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COMPANY INFORMATION

VISION

To become the preferred Financial Services provider in Pakistan, assisting Individuals, Companies
and Financial Institutions find optimal Capital Markets related solutions

MISSION

To offer a wide range of products and services in a transparent manner with an emphasis on
integrity and client confidentiality

To provide customers with complete and innovative solutions by using the best minds and
technology

- A& annualReport2023
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NOTICE OF FOURTEENTH ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the Fourteenth (14™) Annual General Meeting (AGM) of Next Capital
Limited [the Company| will be held on Wednesday, October 25, 2023 at 09:00 a.m. at the Registered
Office of the Company, situated at 2™ Floor, Imperial Court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi to transact
the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS

1. To confirm the minutes of the Thirteenth (13™) Annual General Meeting (AGM) held on October 25,
2022,

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended
June 30, 2023 together with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon,

3. To approve the appointment of the Auditor for the period ending June 30, 2024. The retiring Auditor
Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar., Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have offered
themselves for re-appointment.

4. To transact any other business as may be placed before the meeting with the permission of the Chair.

SPECIAL BUSINESS

5. To consider and if deemed fit, to pass with or without any modification(s), addition(s) or deletion(s),
the following Resolution(s) by the members to circulate the annual statement of financial position and
profit or loss account, auditors’ report and directors' report, etc. ("annual audited financial statements”)
to its members through QR enabled code and web link:

“RESOLVED THAT the Company be and is hereby authorized to circulate its annual audited financial
statements, to the members of the Company through QR enabled code and weblink, in accordance with
S.R.0. 389(1)2023 dated March 21, 2023, issued by SECP.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the annual audited financial statements of the Company be
circulated to members through email, in case an email has been provided by the members of the
Company, and the consent of member to receive the copies through email is not required.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Company shall provide hard copy of all the future annual audited
financial statements to those members only who request the Company in writing to receive hard copies.”

“FURTHER RESOLVED THAT the Chief Executive, and or Company Secretary of the Company be
and are hereby singly authorized to do all acts, deeds and things, take or cause to be taken all necessary
actions to comply with all legal formalities and requirements and file necessary documents, as may be
necessary or incidental for the purpose of implementing this resolution.”

Statement under section 134(3) of the Companies Act, 2017 concerning special business is attached along with
the notice circulated to the members of the Company.

Karachi.
Dated: October 04, 2023
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NOTES

By order of the Board
Muhammad Rizwan Yousuf
Company Secretary

i. The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 18, October, 2023 to 25,
October, 2023 (both days inclusive). Transfers received in order by the Shares Registrar of the
Company, M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited (DCCL). Perdesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi
up to the close of business on October 17, 2023 will be treated in time for the purpose of attending the
Annual General Meeting.

ii. A member entitled to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint another member as his or her
proxy to attend and vote. Proxies in order to be effective, must be received at M/s. Digital
Custodian Company Limited (DCCL), Perdesi House, Old Queens Road, Karachi not later than forty-
eight hours before the time of the meeting and must be duly stamped, signed and witnessed.

a. Members, proxies or nominees shall authenticate their identity by showing their original Computerized
National Identity Card (CNIC) or original passport and bring their folio numbers at the time of
attending the meeting.

b. In the case of corporate entity, Board of Directors’ resolution/Power of Attorney and attested copy of
the CNIC or passport of the nominee shall also be produced (unless provided earlier) at the time of
meeting.

¢. Inorder to be effective, the proxy forms must be received at the office of our Share Registrar no later
than 48 hours before the meeting, duly signed and stamped and witnessed by two persons with their
names, addresses, CNICs’ numbers and signatures.

d. In the case of individuals, attested copies of CNIC or passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy
shall be funished with the proxy form.

e. Inthe case of proxy by a corporate entity, Board of Directors resolution/Power of Attormey and attested
copy of the CNIC or passport of the proxy shall be submitted along with proxy form.

f. Beneficial owners of the physical shares and whose shares are deposited with Central
Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDC) are requested to bring their original
Computerized National Identity Card (CNIC) along with participant's [.D., number and their
account/sub-account number in CDC to facilitate identification at the time of the meeting.

g. In case of proxy, attested copies of proxy's CNIC or passport, account/subaccount and
participant's [.D. numbers must be deposited along with the Form of Proxy at the Share
Registrar of the Company as per paragraph No. ii above, duly witnessed by two persons
whose names, addresses and CNICs’ numbers must be mentioned on the proxy form and
attested photocopies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owner.

h. In case of proxy for corporate members, the Board of Directors’ Resolution/Power of
Attorney with specimen signature of the nominee shall be produced at the time of meeting
(unless it has been provided earlier to the Shares Registrar).

iii. Physical transfers and deposit request under Central Depository System received at the close of
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the business on October 17, 2023 by the Company’s Share Registrar will be treated as being in
time for entitlement to attend, participate in and vote at the meeting.

iv. Members are requested to submit copies of their CNICs and promptly notify any change in address by
writing to the office of the Share Registrar.

v. The Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) vide its Notification #
SMD/SE/2(20)/2021/117 dated December 15", 2021 has instructed to hold the general meeting physically
and virtually to ensure the maximum participation by the members. Therefore, the Company is holding
the AGM meeting both physically at Head Office and through electronic means via Zoom.

vi. To attend and participate in the 14™ AGM of the Company through video link arrangement, members are
requested to complete identification and verification formalities 1.e. provide their names, CNICs scanned
(both sides), folio numbers, cell phone numbers and email addresses on or before October 20th, 2023 by
5:00 p.m. at the following email address i.e. co.secretary(@nextcapital.com.pk. The video link of meeting
will be sent to the members on their email addresses.

vii. Upon receipt of the above information from interested shareholders / members, the Company will send
the login credentials at their email address. On the date of AGM, shareholders will be able to login
participate in the AGM proceedings through their smartphone/computer devices.

viii. The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has issued a letter No. CSD/ED/Misc./2016-639-
640 dated March 26, 2021 addressed to all listed companies drawing attention towards the provision of
Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017 (Act) which requires all companies to replace shares issued by
them in physical form with shares to be issued in the Book-Entry-Form within a period not exceeding four
years from the date of the promulgation of the Act. In order to ensure full compliance with the provisions
of the aforesaid Section 72 and to benefit from the facility of holding shares in the Book-Entry-Form, the
shareholders who still hold shares in physical form are requested to convert their shares in the Book-Entry-
Form.

ix. Pursuant to Companies (Postal Ballot) Regulations 2018, members will be allowed to exercise their right
of vote through postal ballot that is voting by post or through any electronic mode, in accordance with the
requirements and procedure in aforesaid regulations. The details of the same will be provided later.

x. Shareholders can also provide their comments/suggestions for the proposed agenda items of the AGM on

the email: co.secretary(inextcapital.com.pk

xi. Members are requested to immediately notify the change, if any, in their registered address/contacts
numbers to Share Registrar address: M/s. Digital Custodian Company Limited, Perdesi House, Old
Queens Foad, Karachi. Tel: +92 21 32419770, +92 21 32430485.
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STATEMENT OF MATERIAL FACTS CONCERNING SPECIAL BUSINESS PURSUANT TO
SECTION 134 (3) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2017

Agenda no. 5§

The SECP has allowed listed companies, through its SRO No. 389(1)/2023 dated March 21, 2023, to circulate the
annual audited financial statements, to the members of the Company through QR-enabled code and weblink
(instead of CD/DVD/USB), subject to approval of shareholders in the annual general meeting. Where an email
address has been provided by the shareholder, the Company shall circulate annual audited financial statements to
the member through email. A shareholder may request the Company to provide a hard copy of the annual audited
financial statements, and the same shall be provided at the shareholder’s registered address free of cost, upon
receipt of a duly completed request form, as available on the Company’s website, www nextcapital com pk

MNone of the Directors of the Company have any personal interest in the aforesaid Special Business except in their
capacity as Shareholders or Directors of the Company.
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FINANCIAL AND OPERATING HIGHLIGHTS

Year ended 30 June

| 2023 | 2022 [ 2021 [ 2000 | 2019 |
wsmnanssmninnsssincssencseeces QUpERs in Thousands —cee s
Profit and Loss Account
Operating revenue 119,203 417,250 368,170 195,817 174,309
Investment gains - net {3,229} {37,831 13,362 (1678} 5,250
Other income 40,517 47,568 39,980 52465 40,107
Total Turnover 156,492 427,027 421,512 246,606 215,666
Operating & administrative expenses 227,59 337 662 287 488 197,121 197,622
Financial cost 18,548 26,069 22,970 13,008 6,319
Profit/{loss) before taxation (89,652) 63,295 111,054 ECE Y 15,725
Profit/{loss) after taxathon (97,214) 30,779 B1,998 17,784 5,307
Balance Sheet
Share capital 568,250 495,000 495,000 450,000 450,000
Reserves 91,203 80,260 49,482 (43,023 (54,545)
Share holders equity - net of discount on issue of shares 428,047 525,260 494,482 406,977 395,055
Long term liabilities 25,400 22.79% 3,30 32614 -
Current assets 603,054 965,156 1,044,111 659,265 735,762
Current liabilities 363,372 602,491 673,698 344 509 430,867
Taotal assets £16,818 1,150,547 1,198,501 784,099 825922
Total liabilities 388,771 625,287 705,020 377,122 430,867
RATIOS
Performance
Net Prafit/{loss) Margin (%) -81.6% 7.4% 22.3% 9.1% 3.0%
Profit/{loss) befare tax (%) -75.2% 15.2% 30.2% 18.6% a9,0%
Expensefincome (%) 190.9% £80.9% 78.1% 100.7% 113.4%
Return on equity (%) -22.7% 5.9% 16.6% 4.4% 1.3%
Price Earning (%) -23.1% 7.0% 11.3% 4.8% 2.0%
Leverage
Debt to equity (%) 35.0% 28.6% 38.8% 46.7% 50.6%
Interest cover (x} (3.83) 3.43 511 1.35 11.36)
Liguidity
Current (x) 1.66 1.60 1.55 1581 imn
Earning Per Share [EPS) - values before 2022 restated (1.71) 0.54 1.66 0.36 011
Breakup Value/Net Assets per share - values before 2022 restated 7.52 9.23 9.99 8.22 7.98
Market Value Per Share 5.17 .77 1a.72 T.48 5.30
500
42703 421.51
A0
37.66
Tag
0 22760 246.51 .
i 197.12 136707 62
W00 | 1564
52.00
100 58.59
2611 30,78 52"“3 l 369 47 79 1674 g 3
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100 -
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-200
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Chairman’s Report

| am pleased to present to you, the Annual Report of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

The Board of Directors ("the Board") of Next Capital Limited ["NCL") has performed its duties diligently,
and has managed the affairs of the Company in an effective and efficient manner while protecting
interests of the shareholders of the Company. The Board and the management of the Company have
made their best efforts in minimizing loss for the year that occurred as a result of dwindling market
volumes as a result of a gloomy macroeconomic environment and political uncertainties.

The Board comprises of members bringing together a variety of experience and expertise from various
business disciplines. All Board members are aware of their fiduciary responsibilities and are committed to
fulfilling them by providing strategic direction and necessary guidance to the management of the
Company for compliance with policies, standards, and all regulatory requirements.

The Board has exercised the powers in light of the powers assigned to the Board in accordance to relevant
laws and regulations applicable on the company and the Board has always prioritize the Compliance with
all the applicable laws and regulations in terms of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers
and decision making.

| would like to thank our shareholders, my fellow directors and all the stakeholders of the Company, for

all their support and trust, and acknowledge with gratitude, the dedication of the management of the
Company in such challenging operating conditions.

_,—-—"'"__'_.-F'F_'_-f

o *"1"'; !
Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.) Date : September 29, 2023
Chairman
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DIRECTOR'S REPORT

Economic Review and Outlook

The year 2022-23 was a stressful one for Pakistan, with the economy drifting down to a real GDP growth of 0.3%
from 5.8% and 6.1% of the previous two years. The year started with massive floods that resulted in huge loses of
precious lives, infrastructure, livestock and agriculture. Loses and reconstruction needs are estimated at over USD46
billion in Post-Disaster Needs Assessment. Besides this, Pakistan continued to face deteriorating macroeconomic
indicators with fast depleting foreign exchange reserves and weakening PKR, historic high inflation and interest rates,
slowdown in growth, and fiscal constraints amid political uncertainties and delays in completion of reviews of the
IMF program straining the external account of the country significantly. However, at the turn of the year under
review, the 2019 Extended Fund Facility (EFF) of the IMF expired and Pakistan managed to secure a new 9-month
U503 hillion Stand-By Arrangement (SBA) with the IMF and received USD1.2billion in July 2023 as its first tranche,
This was followed by the committed inflow of USD3 billion from Saudi Arabia and UAE. This 5BA is expected to give
Pakistan space to sail through the period of interim government and elections.

Going forward, securing the IMF programme and external financing for debt repayments (during the current year
and beyond), managing inflationary pressures and stimulating growth will be the maost critical challenges for
the new government.

Equities market performance review and outlook

During the year under review, the benchmark KSE100 index remained extremely volatile, influenced by political and
macroeconomic uncertainties. It reached a high of 43,888 in August 2022 on the back of the successful completion
of combined 7% and 8" reviews of the IMF 2019 EFF. However, further delays in the completion of 3% review led to
increased concerns over external account management, putting pressure on the exchange rate and resulting in the
index falling to a low of 38,136 in January 2023, Afterwards, the market remained dull and the index eventually
closed the year under review almost flat at 41,453 level, losing 88 points or 0.2%. However, as a result of steep
devaluation of PKR against the USD, the index lost 28.5% in US Dollar terms. Uncertainties largely kept investors
cautious as depicted by a significant decline in trading activity. Average daily volumes fell by 34.3% to 191.8 million
shares compared to 291.8 million shares of the previous year. Average daily trading value also shrank by 36.6% to
PKRE.1 billion as compared to PKRS.7 billion of the previous year. Foreign investors bought equities worth USD1.5
million during the year compared to a net selling worth UsD297.5 million in the previous year. Oil & Gas, Power,
Technology, and Textile sectors attracted interest from foreign investors whereas Cement, Fertilizer, Food &
Personal Care, Banks, and all other sectors witnessed foreign selling during the year. Of the local participants, Banks,
Companies, Individuals, and Other Organizations were buyers whereas Mutual Funds, and Insurance Companies
were the major sellers during the year.

Going forward, the market is poised for a recovery given a) Historically low multiples and healthy dividend yields
that are comparable with fixed income returns; b) significant reduction in political and economic uncertainties after
signing of the new SBA with the IMF and c) approaching elections. However, the twin challenges of high inflation
and high interest rates will continue to impact the market. We are likely to witness major reforms aimed at achieving
fiscal consolidation and discipline, through increasing revenues and curtailing unnecessary expenses, and increase
in electricity and gas tariffs as part of energy sector reforms. Despite these challenges, investor confidence is
expected to gradually improve in the medium to long term.

Financial Performance

The following table depicts your company’s performance during the year under review:

Profit/{Loss) Before Tax [89,651,2449) 63.294.727
Met Profit/{Loss) After Tax (97.213.659) 30.778.715
Other Comprehensive Income
Total Comprehensive Income

Earnings Per Share (1.71) 0.54
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During the year under review, your company posted a loss after tax of PKR97.2 million compared to a profit after tax
of PKR30.8 million in the previous year. Loss per share for the year under review stands at PKR1.71 compared to
earnings per share of PKR0.54 in 2022. The loss primarily emanates from the challenging business environment in
the country that weighed heavily on capital markets & investor sentiment and led to a significant decline in revenues.
However, management’s control over expenses restricted the overall loss incurred during the period.

Total gross brokerage income dropped to PKR100.5 million from PKR194.3 million in the previous year depicting a
decline of 48.2%. This decline was primarily due to extremely thin activity in the equities market. Similarly, Advisory
and related income also fell to PKR33.6 million against PKR277.3 in 2023, as transactions in general were deferred
owing to rising cost of capital and growing uncertainty.

Operating expenses during the year under review decreased to PKR21.2 million, showing an improvement of 47.3%
over the previous year. Despite inflationary conditions, the company managed to control its administrative expenses
which decreased by 23.4% over last year and stood at PKR122.5 million.

The Board is committed to implementing a long-term growth-oriented business strategy with focus on increasing
revenue not only from core brokerage business, but also by pursuing new and emerging opportunities in investment
banking, advisory and related services segments.

Compliance Statement:

(a) The financial statements, prepared by the management of the Company, present its state of affairs fairly, the
result of its operations, cash flows and changes in equity;

(b) Proper books of account of the Company have been maintained;

(c) Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied in preparation of financial statements and
accounting estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment, with which we concur;

{d) International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan and the Companies Act, 2017, as also
stated in note number 2 of the financial statements, have been followed in preparation of financial statements;

(e) Thesystemn of internal control is sound in design and has been effectively implemented and monitored by Audit
Committee;

(f)} The Company is financially sound and there are no significant doubts upon the Company’s ability to continue
as a going concern;

(g) There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance, as detailed in the listing
regulations;

(h) Key operating and financial data of current year and preceding years is appearing after notice of AGM;

(i} Mo dividend is announced for the year ended June 30, 2023.

(i} There are no statutory payments on account of taxes, duties, levies and charges which are outstanding as on
June 30, 2023 except for those disclosed in the financial statements;

(k) All the material changes and commitments affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between
the balance sheet date and the date of the directors’ report have been disclosed in the report;

(I} Three directors have obtained training under the Director’'s Training Program;

{m) The Directors, CFO, CEQ, Company Secretary, Head of Internal Audit and their spouses and minor children did
not carry out any transaction in the shares of the Company during the year; and

{n) Pattern of shareholding is disclosed after financial statements.

Meetings of the Board of Directors:

Four Board meetings were held during the financial year 2022-2023 and were attended by the Directors as follows:
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Name Designation Attendance
Lt. Gen. Tarig Waseem Ghazi (Retd.) Director/ Chairman 3
Mr. Najam Ali Director/ Chief Executive Officer 4
Mrs. Hanna Khan Director 4
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Director 4
Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali Director 4
Mr. Hassan Shahnawaz Director 3
Mr. Khurram Shahzad Director 4

Composition of Board
1. The total number of directors are seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six
b. Female: One

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Categories Names

Lt. Gen. Tarig Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)
Independent Directors

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
Other Non-executive Directors Mrs. Hanna Khan

Mr. Malik Khurram Shahzad

Mr. Majam Ali
Executive Directors
Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali

Committees of Board

The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
Mr, M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali Member

b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mrs. Hanna Khan Member

c) Risk Management Committee
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Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. M. Najam Ali Member
Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali Member

Director's Remuneration

The Board of Directors has transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Companies
Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations 2017.

Credit Rating

The Company has been re-assigned entity ratings of ‘A-/A-2" (A Minus/A-Two) by VIS Credit Rating Company Ltd.
The outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. Issuer rating scale defined by VIS as good credit quality; protection
factors are adequate. Risk factors may vary with possible changes in the economy.

Management Rating

The Company has been assigned management rating of ‘BMR2++" (BMR Two Plus Plus) by VIS Credit Rating
Company Ltd. The outlook on the assigned ratings is ‘Stable’. lssuer rating rationale defined by VIS as strong
regulatory compliance levels; sound external controls, HR & IT services, risk management and financial
management along with adequate initial control framework client relationship.

Corporate and Social Responsibility

Company being a responsible corporate entity is always conscious of its obligations towards the people who work
for it, people around its workplace and the society as a whole.

External Auditors

The retiring auditors, Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Gamar, Chartered Accountants, being eligible, have
offered themselves for reappointment. Accordingly, the Board of Directors endorses the recommendation of the
Audit Committee for the appointment of Messrs. Baker Tilly Mehmood ldrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants as
the auditors for the Company for the financial year ending June 30, 2023.

Appreciation and Acknowledgement

Mext Capital, on behalf of its Board and management would like to place on record our appreciation for the efforts
and continued support of the regulators including the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP), the
State Bank of Pakistan (SBP), Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX) and the Government of Pakistan. We thank all
our clients and shareholders who have placed their trust in our services in these troubled times and our staff for
always putting their best efforts forward.

Date: September 29, 2023.

G‘A _]_——~‘*“’{ ll

Muhammad MNajam Ali Ali Akchtar Ali
Chief Executive Officer Director
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Name of company: NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
Year ended: June 30, 2023

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:
1. The total number of directors are Seven as per the following:
a. Male: Six

h. Female: One

2. The composition of board is as follows:

Categories Names
Lt. Gen. Tarig Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)
Independent Directors Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
Mrs. Hanna Khan

Nox-exacative IRrectors Mr. Malik Khurram Shehzad

Mr. Muhammad Najam Ali
Executive Directors Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali

3. Thedirectors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than seven listed
companies, including this company.

4, The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been
taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting policies and
procedures.

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy, and significant
policies of the company. A complete record of particulars of significant policies along with the
dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained.

6. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have
been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant provisions of the Act and these
Regulations.

7. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director

elected by the board for this purpose. The board has complied with the requirements of Act and
the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting of board.
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8. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of Seven (7) eminent directors, out of which three
(3) directors are already certified under the Directors Training Program as follows:
1. Mr. Muhammad Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan
2. Mrs. Hanna Khan
3. Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz

10. The Board has approved appointment of chief financial officer, company secretary and head of
internal audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of employment and
complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations;

11. Chief Financial Officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial statements before
approval of the board.

12. The board has formed committees comprising of members given below:

a) Audit Committee

Name Designation
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member

Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali Member

b} Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Name Designation
Mr. Hasan Shahnawaz Chairman
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Member
Mrs. Hanna Khan Member
C) Risk Management Committee

Name Designation
Mr. M. Zulgarnain Mahmood Khan Chairman
Mr. M. Najam Ali Member

Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised
to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per
following:
a) Audit Committee: Quarterly
b) HR and Remuneration Committee: Yearly
¢) Risk Management Committee Half-Yearly
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15. The board has set up an effective internal audit function to persons who are considered suitably

qualified and experienced for the purpose and are conversant with the policies and procedures
of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory
rating under the quality control review program of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight
Board of Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the firm involved in the audit
are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-dependent children) of the chief
executive officer, chief financial officer, head of internal audit, company secretary or director of
the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide
other services except in accordance with the Act, these regulations or any other regulatory
requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this
regard.

18. We confirm that all requirements of regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33 and 36 of the Regulations
have been complied with except the requirement mentioned below:

S.no Mandatory Requirement Reg. | Explanation
No.
L. Independent Director 6 The two independent directors have

requisite education and extensive and
suitable experience to carry out their
: ibilities, therefore the Board has
two members or one third of the total S s s
AT thins Hiehd. il hever 38 not appointed the third independent

higher: director.

The independent directors of each
listed company shall not be less than

When there are seven directors on the
board of the company the fraction of
independent director share comes at
2.33. The company may round up or
provide reason for contrary.

2. | Audit Committee: 27 Mr. Ali Akhtar Ali will be replaced by a
non-executive director in the next period.

It is mandatory that the audit
committee will be established by the
board of at least three members
comprising of non-executive directors
and at least one independent director.

Whereas one member appears to be an
executive director.

19.Explaination for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8, 27,32, 33
and 36 is mentioned below:

S.no Non-Mandatory Requirement Reg. | Explanation
No.




next
capila

N

The board may constitute a
separate committee, designated
as the nomination committee, of
such number and class of
directors, as it may deem
appropriate in its circumstances.

1. Responsibility of the Board | 10(5) | The company shall ensure compliance
to its member: with these regulation from next
The Chairman of the Board shall, elections.
at the beginning of term of each
director, issue letter to directors
setting out their role,
obligations, powers and
responsibilities in accordance
with the Act and the company’s
Articles of Association, their
remuneration and entitlement,

2 Directors’ Orientation: 18 All the directors are highly qualified
All companies shall make and well acquaint with the applicable
appropriate arrangements to laws, regulations and affairs of the
carry out orientation for their industry and company.
directors to acquaint them with
these Regulations, applicable
laws, their duties and
responsibilities to enable them
to effectively govern the affairs
of the listed company for and on
behalf of shareholders.

1. Directors’ Training: 19 All the directors are in compliance
It is encouraged that by June 30, with the directors training program
2022 all the directors on their (DTP) except for one director. For
Boards have acquired the other two directors the Company is of
prescribed certification under the view that one of the directors is
any director training program highly qualified and well conversant
offered by institutions, local or with the applicable laws and
foreign, that meet the criteria regulations and for the other one the
specified by the Commission and Company has planned to arrange DTP
approved by it. over the next vear.

4. Nomination Committee 29 Presently, the BOD has not

constituted the Nomination
Committee, however, the functions are
performed by the audit committee.

&7

— 1

Lt. Gen. Tariq Waseem Ghazi (Retd.)

Chairman
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Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar
Chartered Accountants

4th Floor, Central Hotel Building,
Civil Lines, Mereweather Road,
Karachi - Pakistan

T: +92(021) 35644872-7
F. +92(021) 35644873

info@bakertilly.pk
www.bakertilly.pk

To THE MemMBERS OF NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
REVIEW REPORT ON STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE CONTAINED IN LISTED COMPANIES
(Cope OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE) REGULATIONS, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (“the Regulations”) prepared by the Board of
Directors of Next Capital Limited (the Company), for the year ended June 30, 2023 in
accordance with the requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the
status of the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does
not and to highlight any non- compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is
limited primarily to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents
prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As part of our audit of the financial statements, we are required to obtain an understanding of
the accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective
audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on
internal control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such
internal controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review
and approval, its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of
section 208 of the Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of
this requirement to the extent of the approvals of the related party transactions by the Board of
Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures
to assess and determine the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that
whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or not.

ADVISORY * ASSURANCE + TAX

Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Chartered Accountants trading as Baker Tilly is a member of the global network of Baker Tilly International
Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities.

Annual Report 2023
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Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to believe that the

Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company’'s compliance, in all
material respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the

Company for the year ended June 30, 2023.

Further, we draw attention to instances of non-compliances as detailed in para 18 to the
annexed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)

Regulations, 2019,

fn

Engagement Parther: Mehmood A. Razzak

Karachi.
Date: October 03, 2023
UDIN: CR202310151IXHI7v4nf
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Baker Tilly Mehmood Idrees Qamar
Chartered Accoundants

Ath Floor, Central Hotel Bulding
Ciwil Lines, Mereweather Road,
Katachi - Palisian

T 4037 (021) 356448727
P 37 [021) 35684873

|r1r-'@sbai.p|‘.:|l1- pk
www bakeridly pk

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REFORT
To THE MEMBERS OF NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED

REPORT ON THE AUDIT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Next CapiraL Limiten (the Company), which
comprise of the statement of financial position as at June 30, 2023, and the statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity, the cash flow
statement for the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, and we state that we have
obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief,
were necessary for the purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us,
the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with the notes
forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the
manner so required and respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's
affairs as at June 30, 2023 and of the loss and total comprehensive loss, the changes in equity
and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Stotements section of our report, We are
independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountonts as adopted by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

ADVISORY + J'lﬂ:lmﬂ[ » TAX

Baker Taly Mehmood Idrees Qamar, Charlered Acoountants trading as Saler Tilly is a member of 1he giobal netwoek of Baker Tilly Inernational
Ltd., the members of which are separate and independent legal entities
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were
addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

apinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.

Following are the Key audit matters:

5. No.

Key Audit Matters

How the matter was addressed in our audit

1.

Revenue recognition

Refer notes 3.7 and 21 to the financial
statements  relating to  revenue
recognition.

The Company generates revenue from
brokerage services as well as corporate |
finance and related services. Brokerage
represents 75% and corporate finance
and related services represents 25% of
the total revenue,

We identified revenue recognition as
key audit matter as it is one of the key
performance indicators of the Company
and because of the potential risk that
revenue transactions may not being
recognized in the appropriate period.

Our procedures included:

= ‘We obtained an understanding of,
assessed and tested the design and
implementation of key internal controls
over the recording of revenue;

| = We assessed the appropriateness of the

Company's accounting policies for
revenue recognition and compliance of
those policies with applicable accounting
standards;

= We have tested the identified
automated application controls, which
are critical to the revenue recognition
process. Our testing procedures included
the testing of system logics, automated
calculations and validations, testing of
system generated information, system
configuration;

= We checked agreements and related
documents for corporate  finance
services transactions recorded during
the current year to assess whether the
related revenue was recognized in
accordance with the requirement of
applicable accounting standard; and

™
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5. No. | Key Audit Matters How the matter was addressed in our audit

= We compared, on a sample basis,
specific revenue transactions recorded
before and after the reporting date with
underlying documentation to assess
whether revenue has been recognized in
the appropriate accounting period.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information obtained at the
date of this auditor’s report is information included in the Director’s report, but does not include
the financial statements of the company and our auditor’s report thereon,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not
express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent
with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of
this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but
is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or
error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with I5As as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional
judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

= Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

= Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

= Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

= Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial
statements or, If such disclosures are in adequate, to modify our opinion. Qur conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

= Ewvaluate the owverall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,

including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a8 manner that achieves fair presentation.

o
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We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies
in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where
applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are
therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare
circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

RePORT On OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017);

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, the statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement together with the
notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017)
and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;

¢) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for
the purpose of the Company's business; and

d) no Zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIil of 1980).

e] the Company was in compliance with the requirements of section 78 of the Securities Act,
2015 and section 62 of the Future Market Act, 2016 and the relevant requirements of
Securities Brokers (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016 as at the date on which the
statement of financial position was prepared.

- AnnualReport2023
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Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2022 were audited by
another firm of Chartered Accountants who had expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor's report is
Mehmood A. Razzak.

ki

Baker Tilly Mehmbod Idrees Qamar
Chartered Accountants

Karachi

Date: October 03, 2023
UDIN: AR202310151Yb3502D4y
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT JUNE 30, 2023

ASSETS Note
Non-current assets

Property and equipment 4
Right of use assets 5.1
Intangible assets &
Investments in term finance certificates 7
Long term deposits )
Deferred tax asset - net 9
Current assets

Short term investments 10
Investment in marginal financing system 11
Trade debts - net 12
Deposits and prepayments 13
Advances and other receivables 14
Advance tax

Cash and bank balances 15
Total assets

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserve

Authorised capital

100,000,000 (2022: 100,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 16.1
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 16.2

Discount on issue of shares
Accumulated (loss) / profit

MNon-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Current liabilities

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of lease liabilities
Short term borrowing - secured
Trade and other payables
Contract liabiity

Total equity and liabilities

Contingencies and commitments

52

5.2
18
19

20

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integrol part of these financiol statements.

o

"4J A

W,z

2023 2022
................ = ﬂupees e
37,255,427 60,860,329
25,473,580 19,827,340
132,316,263 75,793,873
4,020,000 4,019,064
4,764,761 17,664,761
9,933 918 7,225,752
213,763,949 185,391,119
205,957,399 60,400,032
= 9,300,902
217,288,698 296,102,104
47,640,996 131,093,928
3,617,353 206,459,463
41,208,698 40,125,889
87,340,767 221673403
603,053,911 965,155,721
=4,000,000,000 =4.000.000.000
569,250,000 495,000,000
(50,000,000} (50,000,000)
91,203,378 80,260,281
428,046,622 525,260,281
25,399,711 22,796,032
3,004,827 3,004,827
8,910,322 7,575,077
150,000,000 149,997,195
201,456,378 440,746,770
= 1,166,658
363,371,527 602,490,527
— 816,817,860 —1.150.546.840

I

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Operating revenue
Capital gain / (loss) on sale of investments

Unrealised loss on remeasurement of investment
classified as at fair value through profit or loss

Operating expenses
Administrative expenses

Loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL)

Finance cost

Other income
(Loss) / profit before taxation
Taxation

Current

Prior
Deferred

(Loss) / profit for the year

[Loss) / earnings per share - basic and diluted

The annexed netes 1 to 40 form on Integral part of these financial statements.

"

Ayt

wf

2023
Note e
21 119,203,246
22 10,374,433

10 (13,602,935)

2022
RUp@es coe-

417,289.673

(5,297,102)

(32,534,222)

23 (91,167,901) (173,132,695)
24 (122,451,086) {159,793,843)
12.2 (13,976,962 {4,735,838)
25 (18,547,780) (26,069,398)
(130,168,985) 15,726,575
26 40,517,036 47,568,152
(89,651,949 63,294,727
(8,738,676) (35,757,055)
{1,531,199) 1,947,533
2,708,165 1,293,510
27 (7,561,710) (32,516,012)
’9? !l:'lIES!ii 30,778,715
Restated
28 {1.71) 0.54

Chief Executive Officer

Chief Financial Officer

Director
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2023 2022
[ Tr) o e — RUPEESs === eresmamrmnnas -
[Loss) f profit for the year (97,213,659) 30,778,715
Other comprehensive income for the year
Items thot will not be reclossified to profit or loss occount
Realized gain on remeasurement of investment carried at FYTOC = -
Total comprehensive (loss) / income for the year [97,213,658) 30,778,715

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral port of these financiol statements.

L1

by

_.ﬁ,/. — A

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer "~ Director
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MEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

2022
Note T L

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
(Lass) / profit belore taxation (B9,651,949) 63,294,727
Adjustrments for:
Depreciation of property and equipment 24 20,940,354 20,616,202
Depreciation on right of use assyet 4 5,412,985 6,427,548
Amortisation of intangible assets 24 163,667 133,543
Capital [gain) [ loss on sabe of investments 22 110,374,433) 5,297,102
Unrealised boss in the value of investments a1 “lair value through profit or loss' 101 13,602,935 32,534,232
Madrk-ug on bank balances 26 [21,244,893) (22,648,829)
Mark-up on inwestment in margin financing systerm 26 {1,743, 778) (B, 344, 598}
Mark-up under margin rading System 26 {B57,650) .
Maskisp on term finance certificates 26 (726,780 [465,625)
Profit on cash margin 26 (7.008,504) (13,532,834
Loss allowance for life time expected credit loss {ECL) 12.2 13,976 962 4,735 B33
Dividend ncome 26 13,703,650) (475,350}
Gakn on disposal of propeny and equipment 26 (2,905,342) [319.359)
Other income 26 - {1, 781,557)
Finance cost 25 18,547,780 26,069, 398

24,085,653 48,245 701
Cash flows before working copital {65,562, 296) 111540428

Changes In working capital

Decrease / (incréate] in current assets

Trade debts 54,836,444 86,345,318
Advances, deposits, prepayments and other receivables 293,303 546 124,

358,135,990 {38,493,465)
Decrease in current Bobdlities
Trade and other payables [243,117,264) (69,265,141
Contract Rabilithes 13,166, 658) -
Cagh genérated from operating othilies 48,793,772 3,781,821
Finance cost pakd {7.573,334) [22,367,965)
Taxes paid (11,352 685) 32,237 335)
Nt cash generated from [ (used in) operating activities 29,067,753 [50,823,479)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Payment for purchase of property and equipments 4 12,719,650) 19,427,679)
Purchase in Intangible [ [5%,686,057) [72,445,055)
Proceeds from sale of property and equipment 8,289,500 -
Payments against investment in margin financing system 1 [95, 865 348) {629,972 412)
Receipts from investment in margin financing system 11 106,910,028 E99,255, 485
Investment in tefm finance certificate (936] k
Irvestrents - net {145,785, 865) (98,231, 336]
Mark-up received on bank balances and expasure mangn 11,234,893 34,643,045
Mark-up recebved on investment in margin financing system - 8,281,586
Mark-up received on investment in margin trading system 857,650 .
Mark-up received on term finance certificates 126,780
Dividend received 3,703,650 -
Lang term deposits 12,900,000 18541491
Mat cash used in investing activities 1149,425.31%) (43,314,854)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Lease rentals paid |1!.97:r.mll [ 110,839,530]
Dinvidend paid = |50.619]
Met cash used In from financing activities 113,977,875} (10,890,149}
Met decrease In cash and cash equivalents (134,335,441) (113,018,522}
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the yesr 71,676,208 182,704,730
R0 S CN SO N WAL JLON YPir T 1N+
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS COMPRISE OF:
Cash and bank balances 87,340,767 121,673,403
Shot tenm borrowing - secured o {150,000,000] —{149,997,195]

PR 773 - 1 N2 Y 1 - B

The onnexed notes 1 ha 40 form an integrol port of thete financiol $ratements.
% ,‘,/ et

by

Chikef Executive Officer CMief Financisl Officer Director

Annual Report 2023
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STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

Issued, Di i
subscribed i Accumulated
issue of A Total
and paid-up i profit [ (loss)
share capital e
................................. - Rupees
Balance as at July 01, 2021 495,000,000 (%0,000,000) 49 481 566 494 481 566

Total comprehensive income for the year

Frofit for the year - - 30,778,715 30,778,715
Other comprehensive income - r .

30,778,715 30,778,715
Balance as at June 30, 2022 495,000,000 (50,000,000) 80,260,281 525,260,281
Bonus shares issued during the year 74,250,000 = (74,250,000)

Total comprehensive loss for the year

Loss for the year - - {97,213,659) [97,213,659)
Other comprehensive income - . -

(57,213,659)  (97,213,650)

Balance as at June 30, 2023 569,250,000 _lw w 428,046,622

The annexed notes 1 to 40 form an integral part of these financial statements.

o

oy o
'

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director
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NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
MNOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2023

1. LEGAL STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Mext Capital Limited ("the Company”™) was incorporated as a public limited company in Pakistan on December 14, 2009
under repealed Companies Ordinance, 1984 (now Companies Act, 2017). The Company obtained corporate
membership from Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited {"the Exchange®) on February 02, 2010 and was listed on the said
Exchange on April 27, 2012.

The Company is @ TREC holder of Pakistan 5tock Exchange Limited and a member of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange
Limited and is accredited broker by Financial Market Association of Pakistan. The Company is principally engaged in
brokerage of shares, stocks, equity and dabt securities, commodities, forex and other financial instruments and
corporate finance services, Further, the Company is engaged in trading in equity and debt securities on its own
account through ready, spot and forward counters of the stock exchange. The registered office of the Company Is
situated at 2nd Floor, Imperial court, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi,

The Company has a branch office at 63-A, Agora Eden City, DHA Phase B, Lahore,
2. BASIS OF PREPARATION
2.1 Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as
applicable in Pakistan. The accounting and reporting épplicable in Pakistan comprise of:

International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS standards) issued by the International Accounting Standard
Board (1A58) as notified under the Companies Act, 2017; and

Provisions of and directives Issued under the Companies Act, 2017,

Where provisions and of directives issued under Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IFRS standards,
the provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

2.2 Basis of measurement

Thise financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except for equity investments
which are carried at fair values and lease liability valued at present value.

13 Functional currency and presentation currency

These financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the functional and presentation currency of the
Company and have been rounded off to the nearest rupee.

2.4 Use of estimates and judgments

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting standards, as applicable in Pakistan, requires
management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, Income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and various other factars that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances, the results of which
form the basis of making judgments about the carrying values of assets and llabilities that are not readlly apparent
fram other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions 1o accounting estimates are

recognized in the period in which the estimate Is revised if the revision affects enly that period, or in the period of the
revisien and future periods in the revision affects both current and future periods.

I
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The estimates and judgments that have a significant effect on the financial statements are in respect of the following:

Property and equipment (note 3.1 and 4);

Right of use asset (note 3.15 and 5)

Taxatien (note 3.3 and 27);

Provision for impairment of trade debtors (note 3.4, 3.5and 12);
Contingencies (note 3,13, 20 and 27)

.5 Standards, interpretations and amendments to accounting and reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan which
are effective in current period

The following standards, amendments and interpretations are effective for the year ended June 30, 2023, These
standards, interpretations and amendments are either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected
to have significant impact on the Company's financial statements other than certain additional disclosures:

Effective for period beginning on
or after

Amendments to 1AS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment’: Amendments prohibiting
a company from deducting from the cost of property, plant and eguipment
amounts received from selling items produced while the company |s preparing the
asset for its Intended use,

January 1, 2022

Amendments to 1AS 37 "Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets’:
Amendments regarding the costs to include when assessing whether a contract is January 1, 2022
ONEraus.

Certain amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework and annual Improvements have also been
made to a number of standards, which have not been enumerated here for brevity,

2.6 Amendments to standards and IFRS Interpretations that are not yet effective
The following amendments to accounting standards and Interpretations are only effective for accounting periods,
beginning on or after the date mentioned against each of them. These standards, interpretations and amendments are
either not relevant to the Company’s operations or are not expected to have significant impact on the Company's

financial statements other than certain additional disclosures:

Effective from accounting

period beginning on or after
Amendments to IFRS 10 ‘Consolidated Financial Statements’ and 1AS 28 Effective from accounting period
‘Investments In Associates and Joint Ventures': Sale or contribution of beginning on or after a date to be
assets between an Investor and its associate or joint venture. determined. Earlier application is
permitted.

Amendments to |AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements’

January 1, 2023
Amendments regarding the disclosure of accounting policies. i

Amendments to IFRS 16 ‘Leases’; Amendments to clarify how a seller-

January 1, 2024
lessee subsequently measures sale and leaseback transactions.

Amendments to IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments: Disclosures' and 1AS 7
‘Statement of Cash Flows': Amendments regarding supplier finance lanuary 1, 2024
arrangements.

Amendments to 1AS 1 ‘Presentation of Financial Statements”:
Amendments regarding the classification of liabilities and debt with

b
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Effective from accounting
period beginning on or after
Amendments to A5 B "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting
Estimates and Errors': Amendments regarding the definition of accounting January 1, 2023

estimates.

Amendments to 1AS 12 ‘Income Taxes': Amendments regarding deferrad

tax on leases and decommissioning obligations, January 1, 2023

Amendments to IAS 12 ‘Income Taxes': Amendments to provide a
temporary exception to the requirements regarding deferred tax assets January 1, 2023
and liabilities related to pillar two income taxes,

Certain amendments updating a reference to the Conceptual Framework and annual Improvements have also been
made to a number of standards, which have not been enumerated here for brevity,

Cther than the aforesald standards, Interpretations and amendments, the International Accounting Standards Board
{1458) has also issued the following standards which have not been adopted locally by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan:

IFRS 1 - First Time Adoption of International Financial Reporting Standards
IFRS 17 - Insurance Confracts

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies are consistently applied in the preparation of these financial statements are the
same as those applled in earlier periods presented in these financial statements:

31 Property and equipment
Recognition and measurement

Items of property and equipment are measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated
impairment losses.

Cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset. The cost or self-constructed
assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour, any other cost directly attributable to bringing the assets to a
working condition for their intended use, the cost of dismantling and remaoving the items and restoring the site on
which they are [ocated, and capitalized borrowing costs.

If significant parts of an item of property and equipment have different useful lives, then they are accounted for as
separate items (major components) of property and equipment.

Subseguent expenditure is capitalised only if it I5 probable that the future economic benefits assoclated with the
expenditure will flow to the company. The carrying amount of the part 50 replaced is derecognized. The costs relating
to day-to-day servicing of property and equipment are recognized In profit and loss account as incurred.

Depreciation

Depreciation is calculated on cost of property and eguipment less their estimated residual values using the straight-
line method over their useful lives and is recognised in the statement of plﬂﬂl or loss. Depreciation on additions to
property and equipment is charged from the date asset Is avallable for use, till the date of its disposal. The estimated
useful lives of property and equipment for current and comparative periods are disclosed In note 4 to these financial
statements.

Depreciation methods, residual values and useful lives are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted if
appropriate.

Goins and losses on disposal

Any gain or loss on disposal of an item of property and equipment is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

by
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An intangible asset s recognised as an asset If it Is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the asset will
flow to the entity and the cost of such asset can be measured reliably.

Trading Right Entitlerment Certificate (TREC)

This is stated at cost less impairment, if any. The carrying amount is reviewed at each balance sheet date to assess
whether it is In excess of Its recoverable amount, and where the carrying value exceeds estimated recoverable
amount, bt is written down to its estimated recoverable amount.

Software

Costs directly associated with identifiable software that will have probable economic benefits exceeding costs beyond

one year, are recognised as an intanglble asset. Direct costs include the purchase costs of software and other directly
attributable costs of preparing the software for its intended use.

Computer software is measured initially at cost and subsequently stated at cost less accumulated amortisation and
accumulated Impairment losses, If any.

Amuortisation

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, instead they are systematically tested for impairment
at each reporting date. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are amortised at straight line basis over the useful life
of the asset [at the rate specified in note & to these financial statements),

Capitol work-in-progress

It s stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. It includes expenditure incurred and advances made in respect of
software in the course of its development. These cost are transferred to relevant assets category as and when assets
are available for intended use.

3.3 Taxation

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax expense is recognized in the statement of profit
or loss except to the extent that it refates to item recognized directly in other comprehensive income In which case it
is recognized In other comprehensive income.

Current tax

Provision for current taxation is based on taxable income at the enacted or substantively enacted rates of taxation
after taking into account available tax credits and rebates, If any. The charge for current tax includes adjustments to
charge for prior years which arises from assessments / developments made during the year, if any.

Deferred tox

Deferred tax is recognised using balance sheet method, in respect of temporary differences between the carrying
amounts of assets and llabilities for financiel reporting purposes and the amounts used for taxation purposes. The
amoaunt of deferred tax provided Is based on the expected manner of realisation or settlement or the carrying amount
of assets and Liabilities, using the enacted or substantively enacted rates or taxation.

The Company recognises deferred tax asset to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits for the foreseeable
future will be avallable against which the asset can be utllised. Deferred tax assets are reduced 1o the extent that it is
no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be realised.

3.4 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts and other receivables are recognised at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost less
impalrment losses, If any, The company follows trade debts accounting method to record its transactions. Actual
credit boss experience over past years is used to base the calculation of expected credit loss. Trade debts and other
recelvables considered irrecoverable are written off.

.
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A debt investment is measured at FVOC! If it meets both of the following conditions and is not designated as at FYTPL:

it is held within a business model whose ohjective is achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets; and

its contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount cutstanding.

On Initial recognition of an equity investment that is not held for trading, the Company may Irrevocably elect to

present subsequent changes in the imvestment's fair value In statement of other comprehensive income. This election
is made on an investmeant-by-investment basis.

All financial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or FVOC) as described above are measured at FVTPL
on Initial recognition. The Company may irrevocably designate a financial asset that otherwise meets the
requirements to be measured at amortised cost or at FYOC) or at FYTPL if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces
an accounting mismatch that would otherwise arise.

Financial asiets - Business model assessment:

The Company makes an assessment of the objective of the business model In which a financial asset Is held at a
portfolio level because this best reflects the way the business is managed and Information Is provided to
management. The Information considered includes:

the stated policies and objectives for the portfollo and the operation of those policies in practice. These include
whether management's strategy focuses on earning contractual interest income, maintaining a particular
interest rate profile, matching the duration of the financial assets to the duration of any related liabilities or
expected cash outflows or realising cash flows through the sale of the assets;

how the performance of the portfolio is evaluated and reported to the Company’s management;

the risks that affect the performance of the business model (and the financial assets held within that business
maodel) and how those risks are managed;

how managers of the business are compensated - e.g. whether compensation is based on the fair value of the
assets managed or the contractual cash flows collected; and

the frequency, volume and timing of sales of financial assets in prior periods, the reasons for such sales and
expectations about future sales activity.

Transfers of financial assets to third partles in transactions that do not qualify for derecognition are not considered
sales for this purpose, consistent with the Company’s continuing recognition of the assets.

Financial assets that are held for trading or are managed and whose performance is evaluated on a fair value basis are
measured at FYTPL.

Financiol ossets - Assessment whether contractual cash flows are solely payments of principal and interest:

For the purposes of this assessment, 'Frincipal’ 15 definad as the falr value of the financial asset on initial recognition,
“Interest' is defined as consideration for the time value of money and for the credit risk assoclated with the principal
amount outstanding during a particular period of time and for other basic lending risks and costs (e.g. liquidity risk and
administrative costs), as well as a profit margin.

In assessing whether the contractual cash flows are sclely payments of principal and Interest, the Company considers
the contractual terms of the instrument. This includes assessing whether the financial asset contains a contractual
term that could change the timing or amount of contractual cash flows such that it would not meet this condition. In
making this assessment, the Company considers:

- contingent events that would change the amount or timing of cash flows:
- terms that may adjust the contractual coupon rate, including variable-rate features;
prepayment and extension features: and
terms that limit the Company's claim to cash flows from specified assets [e.g. non-recourse features).
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A prepayment feature |s consistent with the selely payments of principal and interest criterion If the prepayment
amount substantially represents unpaid amounts of principal and interest on the principal amount outstanding, which
may include reasonable additional compensation for early termination of the contract, Additionally, for a financial
asset acquired at a discount or premium to its contractual par amount, a feature that permits or requires prepayment
at an amount that substantially represents the contractual par amount plus accrued (but unpaid) contractual interest
(which may also Include reasonable additional compensation for early termination) is treated as consistent with this
criterion if the fair value of the prepayment feature is insignificant at initial recognition.

Financiol assets - Subsequent measurement and gains and losses:

- Finoncial assets at FYTPL
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Net gains and losses, including any Interest or dividend
income, are recognised In the statement of profit or loss.

<+ Financiol assets at Amortised cost
These assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method, The amortised
cost is reduced by impalrment losses. Interest income, foreign exchange gains and losses and impalrment are
recognised in the statement profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is recognised in the statement
profit or loss.

- Debt investments at FVOCI
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value, Interest income calculated using the effective interest
method, foreign exchange gains and losses and impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Other net gains and losses are recognised in statement of other comprehensive Income. On derecognition, gains
and losses accumulated in statement of other comprehensive income are reclassified to the statement of profit
or loss,

- Equity investments at FVOC!
These assets are subsequently measured at fair value. Dividends are recognised as income in profit or loss
account unless the dividend clearly represents a recovery of part of the cost of the investment.

Other net gains and losses are recognised in statement of other comprehensive income and are never
reclassified to the statement of profit or loss,

Financial liabilities - Classification, subsequent measurement and gains and losses

Financial liabilities are classified as measured at amortised cost or FVTPL A financial liability is classified as at FVTPL if
it is classified as held-for-trading. Financial liabilities at FYTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses,
including any interest expense, are recognised in profit or loss account. Other financial liabllities are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective Interest method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss. Any gain or loss on derecognition is also recognised in the
statement of profit or loss,

3.14.3 Derecognition
Financial assets
The Company derecognises a financial asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the financial asset
expire, or it transfers the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction In which substantially all of the

risks and rewards of ownership of the financial asset are transferred or In which the Company neither transfers nor
retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and it does not retain control of the financial asset.

The Company enters into transactions whereby it transfers assets recognised in its statement of financial position, but
retains either all or substantially all of the risks and rewards of the transferred assets. In these cases, the transferred
assets are not derecognised.

-
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Financial liabilities

The Company derecognises a financial liability when its contractual obligations are discharged or cancelled, or expire.
The Company also derecognises a financial liability when its terms are modified and the cash flows of the modified
liability are substantially different, in which case a new financial liability based on the modified terms is recognised at
fair value.

On derecognition of a financial lability, the difference between the carrying amount extinguished and the
consideration paid (including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities assumed) is recognised in statement of
profit or loss.
3.14.4 Offsetting
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount presented in the statement of financial position
when, and only when, the Company currently has a legally enforceable right to set off the amounts and It intends
either to settle them on a net basis or to realise the asset and settle the liability simultanecushy.
3.14.5 Impairment
(i}  Financial assets
The Company recognises loss allowances for ECLs on:
- financial assets measured at amortised cost;
* debt instruments measured at FVOCK; and

= contracts assers.

The Company measures loss allowances at an amount equal to lifetime Expected Credit Losses (ECLs), except
for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

debt securities that are determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date;
other debt securities and bank balances for which credit risk [Le. the risk of default occurring over the
expected life of the financial instrument} has not increased significantly since Initial recognition,
Loss allowances for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs.
When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since Initial recognition
and when estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and
available without undue cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and gualitative information and analysis,
based on the Company's historical experience and informed credit assessment and inducing forward-looking

information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a financial asset has increased significantly if it is more than 30
days past due,

The Company considers a financial asset to be in default when:

the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to the Company in full, without recourse by the
Company te actions such as realising security (if any is held); or

the financial asset is more than 365 days past due.

Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible defauit events over the expected life of a financial
Instrument.

The maximum period considered when estimating ECLs is the maximum contractual period over which the
Company is exposed to credit risk.

b
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Measurement of ECLs

ECLs are probability-weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured as the present value of all
cash shortfalls (i.e. the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and
the cash flows that the Company expects to receive).

ECLs are discounted at the effective interest rate of the financial assat,
Credit impaired financial assets

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether financial assets carried at amortised cost are credit-
impaired. A financial asset is 'credit-impaired ' when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the
estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;

- a breach of contract such as a default or being more than 365 days past due;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider
otherwise;

= it Is probable that the borrower will anter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization; or

- the disappearance of an active market for a security because of financial difficulties.

Presentation of allowance for ECL in the statement of financial position

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortised cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of
the assets.

Write-off

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations
of recovering a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. Financial assets that are written off could still
be subject to enforcement activities in arder to comply with the Company’s procedures for recovery of amounts
due.

{if)  MNon-financlal assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed at each reporting date to determine whether there is
any indication of impairment. If any such indication exists, then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated,
The Company's corporate assets do not generate separate cash inflows, If there is an indication that a corporate
asset may be impaired, then the recoverable amount is determined for the CGU to which the corporate asset
belongs. The recoverable amount of an asset or cash-generating unit is the greater of its value in use and its fair
value less costs to sell. In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessment of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset or CGU. For the purpose of Impalrment testing, assets that cannot be tested
individually are grouped together into the smallest group of assets that generates cash Inflows from continuing
use that are largely independent of the cash inflows of other assets or Company's of assets (the “cash-
generating unit, ar CGU").

An impairment loss is recognised if the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its estimated recoverable
amount. Impairment losses are recognised in statement of profit or loss account.
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315  Right-of-use assets and related liability

A contract Is, or contains a lease if the contract conveys a right to control the use of an identified asset for a perfod of
time in exchange for consideration. The Company mainly leases properties for its operations. The Company recognises
a right-of-use asset and lease liability at the lease commencement date. The right-of-use asset is initlally measured at
cost, however In accordance with para 16.35 of IFRS 16 which states “if the right-of-use assets relates to a class of
property, plant and equipment to which lessee applies the revaluation model in IAS 16, a lessee may elect to apply the
revaluation model to all the right-of-use assets that relate to that class of property, plant and equipment” the
management of the Company has decided to adopt revaluation model for subsequent measurement of right-of-use
assets, Therefore, subsequently the right- of-use assets are measured on revalued amount less any accumulated
depreciation and impalrment losses, and adjusted for certain remeasurement of the lease liability. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated using the straight-line method from the commencement date to the earlier of end of the useful
life of right-of-use asset or end of the lease term. The estimated useful lives of assets are determined on the same
basls as that for owned assets. In addition, the right-of-use asset is periodically reduced by impairment losses, if any.

Thea lease liability against right of use asset is initially measured at the present value of the lease payment that are not
paid at the commencement date discounted us:ng the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be
readily determined, the Company's incremental borrowing rate. The lease liability s subsequently increased by the
interest cost on the lease liability and decreased by lease payments made. It Is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index or rate, a change in assessment of whether extension option
is reasonably certain to be exercised or a termination option is reasonably certain not to be exercised.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term and low value assets,
The lease payments associated with these leases are recognised as an expense on a straight line basis over the lease
term. The right-of-use assets are presented in the same line item as it presents underlying assets for the same nature
it owns.

3.16 Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn
revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to transactions with any of the Company's
other components. An operating segment’s operating results are reviewed regularly by the Board of Directors and
Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available.
The operating segments of the Company are as follows:
Brokerage
The brokerage activities include services provided in respect of share brokerage.
Advisory
It consists of advisory and consultancy function,

Other operations

The other operations include services provided in respect of money market brokerage, forex brokerage, commodity
brokerage and share subscription commission.

2023 2022
4. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT Note Rupees
Operating assets 4.1 37,255,427 60,860,329
Capital work in progress 4.2 = =
- 37,255,427 __60860,323,

i
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2023 2022

4.2  Capital work in progress L] R —
Leasehold improvements
Opening cost - 6,285,789
Additions - 443,409
Transfer - [6,729,198)
As at June 30, -

5. LEASES

5.1  Right-of-use assets
Opening balance 19,827,340 31,741,341
Additions - -
Disposals * (5,486,453)
Modification 11,069,225 -
Depreciation expense (5,422,985) (6,427.548)
As at Juna 30, 255413 580 19, EHIEU

5.1.1 The depreciation charge on right of use assets for the year has been allocated to administrative expenses.

5.1.2 The lessor of the leased property of Lahaore is a Director.

5.2  Lease liabilities
Rental contracts are made for a fixed period subject to renewal upon mutual consent of Company and lessor. Wherever
practicable the Company seeks to include extension option to provide operational flexibility. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and conditions. Management exercises significant judgement in
determining whether these extension and termination options are reasonably certain to be exercised. The future lease

payments have been discounted using incremental borrowing rate at the time of the inception of the lease.

5.2.1 Set out below the movements during the year in lease lability:

2023 2022
Rupees
Opening balance 30,371,109 41,955,849
Additions . -
Madification 11,069,225 -
Disposal - |5.560,847)
Interest expense 6,847,574 4,815,637
Payments (13,977,875) {10,839,530)
Closing balance 34,310,033 30,371,109
Current 8,910,322 7,575,077
MNon - current 25,399,711 22,796,032

34,310,033 30,371,109

3
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5.2.2 Lease liabilities are payable as follows:

2023 2022
Lense Present value o Present value
S of lease ety of lease
payment payment
Rupees
Not later than one year 13,507,983 8,910,322 11,540,197 7.575,077
Later than one year but not later than five years 31,528,147 25,399,711 29,096,554 22,796,032
Later than five years . - . .
45,036,130 34,310,033 40,636,751 30,371,109
Financial charges allocated 1o future periods (10,726,097) {10,265,642)
34,310,033 34,310,033 30,371,109 30,371,109
Less: Current maturity (8.910,322) (8,910,322) |7,575,077) (7.575,077)
25,359,711 25, 399‘111 22796032 227 I
023 2022
B. INTANGIBLE ASSETS MNote Rupaes
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange - membership card 950,000 850,000
Trading Right Entitlerment Certificate (TREC) &1 2,500,000 2,500,000
Software 6.2 226,151 389,818
Capital work in progress 6.3 118,640,112 71,954,055
132,316,263 75,793,873
6.1 This represents TREC received from Pakistan 5tock Exchange In accordance with the requirements of the Stock Exchanges
{Corporatisation, Demutualization and Integration) Act, 2012,
2023 022
6.2  Software HNote Rupees
Net corrying volue basis
Opening net book value 389,818 31,361
Additions - 491,000
Amortisation charge (163,667) [133,543)
Closing net book value 125i151 339.3&
Gross carrying value
Cost 5,644,660 5,644,660
Accumulated amortisation (5,418,509) (5,254,842}
Net book value 226,151 ELER -]
Amaortisation rate 3% 338
6.3 Capital work in progriess
Opening 71,954,055 -
Capital expenditure incurred during the period [ year 6.3.1 56,686,057 71,954,065
Transferred to intangible assels " -
Closing 1 112 71,954 055
6.3.1 This represents the cost capitalised for the development of a software.

"
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7. INVESTMENT IN TERM FINANCE CERTIFICATES

2023 2022 2023 2022
f certifi i
(Mumber of certificates) Carrying Each vakad Carrying Pkl
amount amount
Rupees
Name of investee
BO2 802 Soneri Bank Limited 4,020,000 4,020,000 4,019 064 4,010,000
Mark- t
ark-up rate (per Eca et Unredeemed Maturity lﬂ"l_ﬂfm
7.1 Name of Security annum) Face Value rating
Soneri Bank Limited - Tier 1 TFC & month KIBOR + 2% 4,020,000 4,020,000 Perpetual A
2023 2022
8. LONG TERM DEPOSITS Note [ — 1117 T EOS—
Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 8.1 . 12,900,000
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 125,000 125,000
MNational Clearing Company of Paklstan Limited 1,400,000 1,400,000
Pakistan Mercantile Exchange 8.2 1,250,000 1,250,000
Security deposit against office premises 1,869,761 1,869,761
Security deposit against PSO card 120,000 120,000

4,764,761 17,664,761

8.1 This includes depasits placed with Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited for taking exposures in regular, future market and cash
deposited against Base Minimum Capital requirement,

8.2 This represent deposits placed with Pakistan Mercantile Exchange for taking exposures in commodity market.
9. DEFERRED TAX ASSET - net

Deductible / [taxable) temporary difference arising in respect of:

2023 2022
Note seceeeee s RUpees
Accelerated depreciation / amortisation (284,830) [464,410)
Liability against asset subject to finance lease 9,949,910 9,837,235
Right of use asset {7,387,338) (5,749,929}
Provision for impairment on trade debts 7,656,176 3,602,856
2.1 9i531 918 ﬁ

bn
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9.1 Reconciliation of deferred tax

Recopnised in Recopnited in
Balance as at e and ln:: other Balance as at pefit m:fﬂ: ather Balance as at
July 01, 2021 ok cormprehensiee  June 30, 2022 eomphehensve  June 30, 2023
income Irveemss
Rupees
Deferred tax asset £ (liability] erfsing due to:
Accelerated tax depreciation / amortization (581,005) 116,555 464,410} 175,580 (284,830}
Right of use asset (9,205,615) 3,455,686 (5. 748,929) [1,637.409) (7.387,33E}
Liability against asset subject to finance lease 13,186,412 (3,349,177} 8837735 112,675 9,949,910
Prowision for impairment on trade debts 2,532 450 1,070,406 3602 856 4,053,300 T656,176
5,932,243 1,133,510 1225752 2,708,166 9933 918
2023 2022
10, SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS Mote - Rupees
Fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities 10.1 205,957 399 B0.400,032
101 Listed equity securities
2023 2022
Carrying Market Market
2023 2022 amount valus value
of shares Name of investes Rupees
- 205,365 Antock Refinery Limited 35,099,763
- 100 Habib Banik Limited . . 0,134
4,792,000 2,374,500 Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 47.279.876 35,450,800 24,291.13%
845,000 Bank Alfalah Limited 25,808,558 25,721,800
400,000 0uG, Ehan Cement Company Limited 10,059,216 20,520,000
2,618,300 Maple Leaf Cement Factory Limited 71,647,185 74,176,439 -
500,000 TRG Pakistan Limited 49,654,054 | 45,065,000
454, e TPL Trakker Limited 4,111,445 lmieﬁﬂ -
215,560,334 205,957,359 60,400,032
Less:
Unrealised loss on re-measwmement of investment
classified as fair value through profit or loss {13,602,935) -
5, mﬂ i E!E Eﬂ 2{}5!'95? 399 205 5!-?!3‘99- 50400032
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10.2  These securities were held as collateral with the NCCPL on account of market exposure in accordance with the
provisions of the Securities Act, 2015,

2023
Number of Shares Market Value

Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 3,625,500 26,828,700
Bank Alfalah Limited 500,000 15,220,000
TRG Pakistan Limited 25,000 2,303,250
Mapie Leaf Cement Factory Limited 535,000 15,184,880
4,686,500 59,536,830
11, INVESTMENT IN MARGINAL FINANCING SYSTEM

This amouwnt is given as a Margin Financing (MF) to our clients through National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited.
This amount Is secured agalnst securities of clients held in House accounts under pledged status. The Company Is
financing on Financing Participation Ratio (FPR) of maximum 75% and charging markup upto the rate of 3 month

KIBOR plus B%.
2023 2022
Note Bl L 1] * [-LLI R
Investment In MF at beginning of the year 5,300,902 70,326,739
Total placements during the year 95,865,348 620,972,412
Total release against MF during the year (106,910,028) | (699,295,485)
Realised income on MF 1,743,778 B, 297,236

(105,166,250)  (690,998,249)

Balance at end of the year

- 2,300,902
12.  TRADE DEBTS - NET

Receivable from clients on account of:

Purchase of shares on behalf of clients 227,900,617 293,258 815
Brokerage cormmission

Equity shares 5,805,315 5,158,039
- Money market and forex 783,658 1,753,317
6,588,973 6,911,356
Consultancy fee 9,199,712 8,354,575
Gross trade debts 12.1 243,689,302 308,525,746
Loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL) 12.2 (26,400,604) (12,423,642)

21728869 _ 296102100

12.1 Aging analysis
The aging analysis of the trade debts is as follows:

Upto five days 130,223,861 279,190,963
More than five days 113,465,441 29,334 783

12.1.1 243,689,302 308,525,746

12.1.1 This includes Rs. 7,262,057 (2022: As. 4,513,270) as receivable from related parties.

"
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2023 2022
12.2  Loss allowance for life time expected credit loss (ECL) e RUPEES —remereras
Opening balance 12,423,642 7,687,804
Charged during the year 13,976,962 4,735,838
Closing balance 26,400,604 12,423 642

—_— e ——

2023
12,3  PLEDGE SECURITIES WITH FINANCIAL INSTITUTION No. of Securities Value
Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of brokerage house
Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of Directors/Sponsors/CEQ/Shareholder - -
Pledged to financial institutions on behalf of Clients 5,520,000 29,065,500

12.4  Customer assets held in the central depository system consists of 356,856,888 shares valued at Rs. 6,145 million.

2023 2022
13. DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS Notg  =eeeeeeenaes RUpEEs seermmmnsares
Deposit against exposure margin 13.1 29,313,065 108,173,387
Deposit against Marginal Trading Services 13.2 10,052,862 10,100,759
Prepaid expenses 3,753,261 3,159,994
Sales tax receivables 4,521,808 59,659,808
‘?Iﬁﬂﬁﬁ i;ilﬁ; EJE

13.1  This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin in respect of
trade In future and ready market. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 10.75% to 17.00% (June 30, 2022:
4.00% to 5.61%) per annum.

13.2  This represents deposit with National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited against the exposure margin against trade
and sustained losses to date on Marginal Trading Services. These deposits carry profit at rates ranging from 10.75% to
17.00% (2022; 4.00% to 5.61%) per annum.

14.

15.

2023 2022
ADVAMCES AND OTHER RECEIVABLES Note -emmeemeo- HUpEES
Considered good
Advance against salary - secured 907,500 341,013
Other receivables and advances - unsecured 2,709,853 6,118,450
Receivable against sale of shares - 200,000,000
EIEIIE!EE EEIﬂEE 4E=
CASH AND BANK BALANCES
Balances with banks:
Savings accounts 15.1 76,475,247 181,147,772
Current occounts:
Conventional 9,710,016 38,639,309
Shariah compliant 1,134,884 1,679,259
15.2 87,320,147 221,666,340
Cash in hand 20,620 7.063
E?IHIJEIET 211,673,403

b
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15.1  Profit rate on savings accounts ranges from 12.25% to 18.50% per annum (june 30, 2022; 5.50% to 12.3% per annum,

15.2 This include Rs. 63.128 milllon (June 30, 2022: As. 182,199 million) kept in designated bank accounts maintained on
behalf of clients.

023 022
15.3  Customer and proprietor wise balances Rupées
Proprietary account balances including cash In hand 24,212,648 39,474,007
Client account balances 63,128,119 182,199,396
87,340,767 221,673,403
16. AUTHORISED, ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UFP SHARE CAPITAL
161  Authorised share capital
2023 02z 2023 2022
{N_E‘mhﬁ ofshares) e RUPEES ccsssssseraaaanns
100,000,000 100,000,000 Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 1,000,000,000  __1.000,000,000
16.2  Issued, subscribed and pald-up share capital
023 2022
[Mumber of shares) Ordinary shares
45,000,000 45,000,000  Futly paid in cash 450,000,000 450,000,000
4,500,000 4,500,000 Issued as bonus sheres - 10% 45,000,000 45,000,000
7,425,000 - Issued as bonus shares - 15% 74,250,000 -
—S6525,000, 49500000 —iSS250000, 495000000,
163  PATTERN OF SHARHOLDING 2023
Shares held Percentage
Directors and their spouse(s) and mingr children
Mr. Muhammad Najam All 15,645,836 17.485%
Mrs. Hanna Khan 4,408,401 T.744%
MR. Muhammad Zulgernain Mehmood Ehan 5,005,908 15.821%
Dr. Ali Akhtar Ali 1 0.000%
Lieutenant General{fetd) Tarig Waseem Ghazl 30,517 0.054%
Mr. Hassan Shahnawaz 1,846 0.005%
Mr. Balik Khurram Shahzad 1,265 0.002%
Executives 6,175 0.011%
Banks, development finance institutions, non- banking finonce companies,
Insuronce companies, takajful, modorabas and pension funds 12,219,346 21.466%
Othars 15,604,705 17.413%
56,925,000 100.00%

16,4  As per regulation 34(2)e)if) of the Securities Brokers [Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016, below sre the
names of shareholders having more than 5% of the shares and all changes in shareholding abowve 5%.

2023 2022 2023 2022
Name of shareholders ---r- shares held - wevsnessenes 3 0F holding seeseeesees
Muhammad Majam Ali 15,645,836 13,605,075 27.48% 27.49%
Muhammad Zulgarnain Mehmood Khan 9,005,908 7,828,750 15.82% 15.82%
Adnan Afridi 5,691,867 4,949,450 10.00% 10.00%
MCE Bank Limited - Treasury 5,516,032 4,796,550 5.69% 9.69%
Hanna Khan 4,408,401 3,832,775 T.74% T.74%
Maple Leal Cement Factory Limited 4,269,375 3,713,500 T.50% 7.50%

&v\
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17. RECONCILIATION OF MOVEMENT OF LIABILITIES TO CASH FLOWS ARISING FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Liabllities Equity
Issuwed,
Discounton  Acc lated
Lease subscribed ‘“::nl._ s :r::t} Fair value Total
liabilities and paid-up reserve
shares (losses)
share capital
Rupees
Balance as at 01 July 2022 30,371,109 495,000,000 (50,000.000) 80,260,281 . 555,631,390
Liability - related
Lease rentals paid {13,977.875) - - - - [13,977,875)
Maodification 11,069,225 - . - - 11,069,225
Finance cost lease liabilities 6,847,574 - : : L 6,847,574
Lass for the year - - - {97,213 659) - (97,213 659)
3,938,924 - - {97,213,659) - [93,274,735)
Issue of bonus shares . 74,250,000 . {74,250,000) .
Balance as at June 30, 2023 iﬂii 10,033 EEEEZSEI‘DN iiﬂﬂ (‘-‘D(II ’mizus.srsi - 45%35&555
Liabilities Equity
lssued,
i t Acc lated
Lease subscribed :::;Hn‘lnn “:lll:tj Fair value Total
liabilities and paid-up shares [pl:u.st!} referve
share capital
[ —— W
Balance as at 01 July 2021 41,955.84% 495,000,000 (50,000,000) 49481566 : 536,437,415
LiabHity - related
Lease rentals paid {10,839.530) * - E . (10,839,530)
Modification |5.560,847) - - - - |5,560,847)
Finance cost lease liabilities 4,815 637 - - - . 4,815,637
Loss for the year - . - 30,778,715 - 30,778,715
{11,584,740) - - 30,778,715 - 19,193,975
Issue of bonus shares - - - - . -
Balance as at June 30, 2022 30 3?1.‘109 495 BEI:IiﬂW ’WE‘WUI 80, 2!&1&1 - SEEHHIFM
2023 2022
Note Rupees
18, SHORT TERM BORROWING - SECURED 181 m M

18.1 Aunning finance facility of As, 150 milllon (2022: Rs. 150 million) has been obtained by the Company from Sindh bank having
explry on October 31, 2023 and is secured against charge over present and future current assets of the Company. The mark-up
on the facility is payable quarterly at 3 month KIBOR plus 3.5% (2022: 3 month KIBOR plus 3.5%).

2023 2022
19,  TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES Note Rupees
Trade creditors 19.1 77,232,043 204,248,069
Payable to Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 19.1 7,817,005 156,991,350
Accrued commission to traders 18.2 . 3,344,261
Accrued salaries and other expenses ¥ 4,174,979
Payable to auditors 1,269,000 1438426
Tax deducted at source 721,962 54,469,725
Commissien payable 18.3 78,252 78,252
Accrued expenses - 291,085
Accrued markup 6,606,918 21,780,046
IPS Accounts 13,669,064 128,436
Other payables 94,062,134 12,802,101

J‘IIIEISEEHS 440,746,770

o
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19.1  This includes Rs. 7.82 million (2022 Rs. 156.99 million) trade payable in respect of two days trading with T+2 settlement.
19.2  This includes commission payable of Rs. Mil (2022: Rs. 2.498 million] to refated parties.

19.3  This represents commission payable to a foreign brokerage house.

20.  CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

20.1  Contingencles

20.1.1 The Sindh Revenue Board [SRB) passed an order for recovery of Sindh sales tax on advisory services amounting to Rs, B71,581
for the tax period July 2011 to June 2012, The Company filed appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB) against the said
order, The Commissioner Appeals (SRB) passed the final order dated 21 November 2014 for recovery of assessed amount Rs.
871,581 and default surcharge to be calculated at the time of payment.

The Company filed the petition against the order to the Honourable High Court of Sindh ("the Court”) and the Court granted an
interim order dated 28 November 2014 and restrained the SAB from demanding any payment till further orders by the Court.

The SRE has passed an order on 11 Cctober 2019 in respect of short declaration of revenue on which short paid sales tax
amounting to Rs, 6,347,287 /- was computed for the tax period from July 2013 to June 2014. The Company filed appeal before
the Commissloner Appeals {SRB) against the said order and also filed the petition 5.T.R.A, No. 6/2016 against the order to the
Court. Appeal and petition both are pending for hearings with Commissloner Appeals and the Court.

The SAB has passed an order on 30 June 2020 in respect of short declaration of revenue on which short paid sales tax
amounting to Rs. 1,730,745 including penalty of Rs. 86,537 was computed for the tax period from July 2012 to June 2013. The
Company filed appeal before the Commissioner Appeals (SRB) against the said order and also filed the petition against the order
to the Court to add this case in earlier petition due to similar grounds of both orders. Appeal and petition both are pending for
hearings with Commissioner Appeals and the Court.

The management based on the advice of its adviser Is confident that the above such services were nol taxable under the Sindh
Sales Tax Act, 2011 till 1st July 2014, wherefrom amendment in the Act introduced. The department erroneously charged Sales
Tax on such services retrospectively. The Company was duly paying Sindh Sales Tax on brokerage services and filing 55T return
accordingly. The Company is confident of a favourable cutcome against all orders passed by SRB, therefore, no provision has
been made In this regard. For income tax contingencies, refer note 27.

20.1.2 The SRE issued notice Lo the Company In respect of short payment of sales tax for the tax periods from July 2011 to June 2018
amounting to Rs. 22.382 million. The Company provided all the relevant details and explanation to the SRE and also paid tax
amounting to Rs. 6.509 million along with penalty and default surcharge amounting to Rs. 0.375 million under the amnesty
scheme provided through notification no. SRB-3-4/11/2018 dated May 18, 2018,

After the compliance and payment no further notice has been recelved.

20.1.3 During the year 2019-20, one of the client filed a case before the civil court of Lahore, against the Company, Pakistan Stock
Exchange Limited, Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and Central Depository Company, seeking rendition of
accounts and permanent injunction from the Comparny. The case is pending before the Civil Court Lahore. The Company based
on Its lawyer’s assessment and its legal standing is confident of a favourable outcome of the same, therefore, no provision has
been made in this regard. The possibility of materialisation of this case against the Company is remote.

2023 2022
20.2 Commitments e - Rupees
For sale of quoted securities under future contracts against counter commitments SEFHEEEE 31,004 555
For purchase of quoted securities under future contracts against counter commitments 68,942,430 29 BE0 475
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2023 2022
21. OPERATING REVENUE Note Rupees
Brokerage income 100,545,129 194,280,119
Advisory / consultancy fee 33,589,539 271,257,212
Debt capital market services 565,000 -
Revenue including sales tax on services 21.2 134,699,668 471,537,331
Less: Sales tax on services 15,496,422 54,247,658
Met revenue excluding sales tax on services 21.1 119,203,246 417,289,673

—=mradeoher s e i

21.1  Disaggregation of revenue by timing of revenue recognition

Timing of revenue recognition
Services transferred at a point In time 88,977,990 171,929,308
Services transferred over time 30,225,256 245,360,364

113,203,246 417,289,673

21.2 This includes brokerage earned from related parties amounting to Rs. 1.634 million (2022; Rs. 5.368 million),

2023 2022
22, CAPITAL GAIN / (LOSS) ON SALE OF INVESTMENTS Note Rupees

Gain / {loss) on sale of short term investments in listed equity securities 10,374,433 (5,297,102)

10,374,433 (5,297,102

23. OPERATING EXPENSES

Salaries, wages and other benefits 72,119,679 113,804,141
Consultancy fees 23.1 5,385,363 762,770
Sub-underwriting commission 23.2 - 1,083,374
Commission and referral fee 23.3 - 29,005,765
Service and transaction charges 7,237,535 14,149,997
Fees and subscription 6,425,324 14,326,648

91,167,301 173 1215592

23.1 This includes consultancy fee to the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. 0.639 million (2022: Rs. 0.639 million).

23.2  This expense was paid as per underwriting agreement entered with several parties this includes transaction with
Director of the Company amounting to Rs. nil (2022: 1.083 million).

23.3  This includes commission to the Directors of the Company amounting to Rs. Nil (2022: Rs. 19.052 million).

Iy
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023 2022
24. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES Note seeeeeeee—s Rupegs ————
Salaries, wages and other benefits 24.1 54,406,073 85,852,246
Telephone and communication charges 5,510,100 6,304,288
Rent rates and taxes - 268,819
Utllity charges 5,301,968 3,875,853
Vehicle running expenses 6,503,830 4,272,531
Depreciation 4 20,940,394 20,616,202
Depreciation on right of use asset 5 5,422,985 6,427,548
Amortisation 6.2 163,667 133,543
Legal and professional charges 1,954,280 3,763,797
Insurance 3,949,567 2,671,140
Printing, stationery and postage charges 1,563,592 1,619,544
Office supplies 1,590,380 1,329,038
Office repair and maintenance 3,129,397 3,975,133
Fees and subscription 1,316,030 2,934,374
Travelling and entertainment charges 1,244,663 2,454,622
Advertisement expensas 1,035,200 740,394
Auditor's remuneration 24.2 1,268,000 2,010,292
Security 3,631,447 4,564,183
Generator Fuel 537,622 339,024
Miscellaneous 2,980,891 5.641,272

122 451,086 159,793 843

24.1  This includes remuneration to Chief Executive Officer amounting to Rs. 18 million (2022: Rs. 69.43 million].

2023 2022
24.2  Auditors' remuneration N TTT 11 ¢ R——
Audit fes 900,000 900,000
Half yearly review 150,000 250,000
Other services / certifications 100,000 475,000
Out of pocket expenses 25,000 235,292
Sindh sales tax 94,000 150,000

126000 2010292,

5. FINANCE COST

Bank charges 508,154 624,422
Interest on lease llabilities 6,847,574 4,815,637
Mark up charges 11,192,052 20,629,339

18,547,760 26,069,393

26. OTHER INCOME

Mark-up / interest on:

- Bank balances - profit and loss account 21,244,893 22,648,829
- Income Under Margin Financing System 1,743,778 8,344,598
- Income Under Margin Trading System 857,650 -

- Term Finance Certificates 726,780 465,625
Profit on cash margin 7,008,504 13,532,834
Dividend income 3,703,690 475,350
Galn on lease termination - 319,359
Others 5,231,741 1,781,557

M 40,517,036 __ 47,568,152
Y 4
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2023 2022

27. TAXATION Mote . Rupees

27.1  Relationship between income tax expense and accounting profit
(Loss) / profit before taxation !E!IESIIEMBI 63,294,727
Tax at the applicable tax rate of 29% (2022; 29%) - 18,355,471
Tax effect of change in tax rates - -
Tax effect of permanent difference . -
Tax effect of amount relating to prior year . (1,947,533)
Tax effect of income taxed at different tax rates - 16,108,074
Tax effect of minimum tax and Alternate Corporate Tax (ACT) - -

27.1.1 = 32 5155012

27.1.1 Since, there is no accounting profit during the year ended June 30, 2023 and tax has been charged under minimum tax
provisions therefore, no tax reconciliation is prepared for the year then ended.

27.1.2 The income tax returns of the Company have been filed up to tax year 2022 under the Universal Self Assessment
Scheme. This scheme provides that the return filed is deemed to be an assessment order. The returns may be selected
for audit within five years. The Income Tax Commissioner may amend assessment if any objection is raised during
audit.

27.1.3 Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant Commissioner
Inland Revenue in respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2016 on account of short deduction
of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.10 million.

Order under section 161 and 205 of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by the Assistant Commissioner
Inland Revenue In respect of monitoring of withholding of taxes for the tax year 2011 on account of short deduction
of tax on payments made by the Company amounting to Rs. 0.876 million. Against the said order the company has
preferred an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax Ordinance
2001. The case has been heard, however, the decision in appeal is still pending. The management based on the advice
of itz advisor is confident regarding the outcome of the case. Thereby no provision is made within the financial
statements.

Order for amendment in assessment under section 122 (5A) of the Income Tax Ordinance 2001 has been passed by
the tax authorities for the tax year 2011 on the basis that the tax deduction under section 153(1)(b) of the Ordinance
was minimum tax, therefore, no refund Is allowable to the Company creating tax demand of Rs. 26,698, The Company
has preferred an appeal before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) under section 127 of Income Tax
Ordinance, 2001, where hearing in appeal is pending, The management based on the advice of its advisor is confident
regarding the outcome of the case. Thereby no provision is made within the financial statements.

The Company was selected for audit in respect of tax year 2016 through Random Computer Balloting In accordance
with section 214C of the ordinance. The notice for submission of details was issued by Zone-V, Corporate Regional Tax

Office, Karachi whereas jurisdiction of the company falls with Zone-l Corporate Regional Tax office, Karachi, The same
was responded and no further notice has been received yet.
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2023 2022
28. {LOSS) / EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED Mote Rupeas
Profit for the year, attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company !g? HSEEE‘!I 30,778,715
Number
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 16 56,925,000 49,500,000
At bonus shares for adjusted EPS . 7,425,000

56,925,000 56,923,000

Restated
2023 2022
Rupees
Earnings per share basic and diluted 1.71 0.54

28.1  Thereis no dilutive impact on earnings per share.

28.2 The Company Issued bonus shares during the year and accordingly the earnings per share for the comparative year has been
restated.

29, TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES
Related parties comprise of associated companies, directors and key management personnel. Transactions with related parties

are at terms determined in accordance with the agreed rates. Transactions and balances with related parties other than those
disclosed elsewhere are as follows:

2023 2022
9.1 Transactions during theyear e RUPEES mrrerrrers
Directors and their relatives
Commission to traders - Tlﬂﬂ-ﬂ 001
Consultancy fee 636,979 636,979
Brokerage income 1,304,322 2,229,905
Sub-underwriting commission 1083374

Pt ——

Key Management Personnel of the Company

Commission to traders - 783 824
Brokerage income 329,552 é 138313
Salaries and Consultancy fee paid for the development of i-invest software 51!91'.!"109 13 sasima

29.2  Balances outstanding as at year end

Directors and their relatives
Receivable from clients on account of:

- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients 442,736 302,302
Trade creditors ;imizua 13IEEII'J' 311
Accrued commission to traders hd 70,434
Commission Receivable from Traders - LI51.899

Key Management Personnel of the Company
Receivable from clients on account of:

- Purchase of shares on behalf of clients 5,819,261 4,210,968
Trade creditors 29 587 368 917
Accrued commission to traders 193-;55!3 1 428,369

L

-l AnnualReport2023



next
capiral

9.3

29.31

23.3.2

29.3.3

30.

REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTORS AND EXECUTIVE

The aggregate amounts charged in the financial statements for the year in respect of remuneration, including benefits to
directors and executives of the Company are as follows:

Chief Executive Directors Executives
2023 2022 2023 2022 2023 2022
Rupees
Managerial remuneration 12,000,000 12,000,000 6,400,000 6,400,000 43,805,265 37,607,778
House rent allowance 4,800,000 4,800,000 2,560,000 2,560,000 17,522,106 15,043,111
Medical 1,200,000 1,200,000 640,000 640,000 4,380,527 3,760,778
Bonus . 51,432,783 . - 500,000 19,200,000
Commission - 7,644,001 - 783,824
Consultancy fee 636,979 636,979 - 2,751,310
Sub-underwriting commission . 1,083,374 . -
Bonus s =
Contribution to voluntary
pension fund 266,667 533,333 2,866,197
=1B.000000 63432783 10,503,646 _ 19697687 69,074,095 79146801
Mumber 1 1 & 16 15

2
=y

The CEQ and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEQ and executives are also entitled

for other benefits in accordance with the terms of employment.

The Chairman of the Board has been provided with the Company maintained car along with fuel and chauffeur.

Mo fees is pald to directors for attending meetings.

FINAMNCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
FINANCIAL ASSETS

At amortised cost

Term finance certificates

Investment in marginal financing system
Trade debts

Deposits and prepayments

Advances and other receivables

Cash and bank balances

At fair value through profit or loss
Listed equity securities

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

At amortised cost

Unclaimed dividend

Current portion of lease liabilities
Short term borrowing - secured
Trade and other payables
Contract liability

g

2023 2022
s RUpEES -
4,020,000 4,019,064

- 9,300,902
217,288,698 256,102,104
43,119,188 121,434,120
3,617,353 206,459,463
87,340,767 221,673,403
205,957,399 60,400,032
561,343,405 319,383,028
3,004,827 3,004,827
8,910,322 7,575,077
150,000,000 149,997,195
201,456,378 440,746,770
. 1,166,658
363,371,527 _ 602,490,527



[

The maximum exposure to credit risk before any credit enhancements at June 30, 2023 s the carrying amount of the
financial assets as set out below:

2023 2022
Note @ @~ ——eeeeeeen Rup@es ——=seve=s
Long term deposits & 4,764,761 17,664,761
Investment in marginal financing system 11 - 9,300,902
Trade debts 12 217,288,698 296,102,104
Advances 14 907,500 341,013
Deposits 13.1,13.2 & 13.3 39,365,927 118,274,126
Other receivables 14 2,709,853 6,118,450
Cash and Bank balances 15 87,340,767 231,673,403

352,377,506 563,474,759

The aging for trade debtors at the balance sheet date is as follows:

2023 2022
Gross Impairment Gross Impairment
Rupees
Past due 0 - 50 days 178,569,877 685,854 293,254,269 389,018
Past due 91 - 180 days 41,591,512 7,548,385 2,321,010 224,577
Past due 181 days - 270 days 6,628,249 2,469,941 1,149,243 313,047
Past due 271 days - 365 days 3,813,223 2,609,983 573,098 668 874
More than 365 days 13,086,441 13,086,441 10,828,126 10,828,126

243,689,302 26,400,604 308,525,746 12,423,642

Except for the impairment disclosed above, no impairment has been recognized In respect of these recelvables as the
security against the same is adequate.

The credit quality of the Company's cash and cash equivalents, held with various commercial banks and financial
institutions is assessed with reference to external credit ratings thereof, ranging from AAA to A+ assigned by reputable
credit rating agencies,
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Credit rating and collaterals

Bank

Rating Short term Long term June 30, 2023

Agency rating rating Rupees (%)
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al 3,814 0.004
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 166,799 0.191
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ Ad+ 1,670,087 1813
Faysal Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AR 15,714 0.018
Habib Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 754,404 0.864
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ 3,045,853 3.488
15 Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AA- 8,634 0.010
MCRB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 79,336,115 90,857
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA Al A 365,526 0.419
Meezan Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 1,134,884 1.300
The Bank of Punjab PACRA, Al+ Al 740,852 0.848
United Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 12,351 0.014
Soneri Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Ad- 65,113 0.075

E'.-',SZEIIHE 100

Rating Short term Long term June 30, 2022

Agency rating rating Rupees (%)
Askari Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Al+ 3,814 0.002
Bank Al Habib Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 127,339 0.057
Bank Alfalah Limited PACRA Al+ Ab+ 681,608 0.307
Faysal Bank Limited FACRA Al+ L 7,293 0.003
Habib Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 17,228,496 7.772
Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited PACRA Al+ b+ 3,029,493 1.367
J5 Bank Limited PACRA Al+ Ad- 92,555 0.042
MCB Bank Limited PACRA Al+ AAA 197,716,333 89.195
MCB Islamic Bank Limited PACRA Al A 359,157 0.162
Meezan Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 1,679,259 0.758
The Bank of Punjab PACRA Al+ Al+ 740,852 0.334
United Bank Limited VIS Al+ AAA 141 0.001

EEIEEEE 340 100

Concentration of credit risk

Concentration of credit risk exists when changes in economic or industry factors similarly affect groups of
counterparties whose aggregate credit exposure is significant in relation to the Company’s total credit exposure, The
Company's portfolio of financial instruments |s diversified and transactions are entered Into with credit-worthy
counterparties of diverse natures thereby mitigating any significant concentrations of credit risk.
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Liquidity risk

Liguidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting its financial obligations as they fall due. Liquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the
Company could be required to pay its liabifities earlier than expected or difficulty in raising funds to meet commitments associated with financial liabilities as they fall due.

Liguidity risk management

Prisdent liquidity risk management impdies maintaining sufficient cash and marketable securities, the availability of committed credit facilities and the ability 1o close out market
positions due 1o the dynamic nature of the business. The Company's treasury aims at maintaining flexibility in funding by keeping committed credit lines available. The following

are the contractual maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments:

June 30, 2023
Maturities
Carrying Contractual Less than Upta One Two
amount cash flows sin one 1o two to five
months year yEars years
Rupees
Unclaimed dividend 3,004,827 (3,004,827) {3.,004,827) -
Trade and other payables 201,456,378 (201,456,378}  [201,456,378)
Short term borrowing 150,000,000 |150,000,000) [150,000,000)
354,461,205 |354 M!EEI [gadﬁlasl B
June 30, 2022
Maturities
Carrying Contractual Leess than Upta One Twao
amount cash fiows six one 1o two 1o five
maonths year years YEArs
Rupees
Unclaimed dividend 3,004,827 13,004,827 (3,004,827
Short term loans-unsecured 149,957,195 (149,997,195} (149,997,195} -
Trade and other payvables 440,746,770 (440,745,770)  (440,745,770) L
Contract liability 1,166,658 (1,166,658) {1,166,658)

5594915450 554,515 450/ ;5545915 1150&

On the balance sheet date, the Company has cash and bank balances of Rs. 87,340 million (2022: Rs. 221.673 million).

b
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Market risk

Market risk |s the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate a5 a result of changes kn market interest rates or the market price due to a change in credit rating of the
issuer of the nstrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and liquidity in the market.

Market risk comprises of thoee types of risk: curréncy risk, interest rate risk and price risk.

Market risk managemen

The Company manages market risk by monitoring exposure on marketable securities by fellowing the internal risk management and investment policies and guidelines,
Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in foreign exchange rates. The Company, at present, is not
exposed 1o currency risk as all transactions are carried out in Pak Rupees.

Interest rate risk
Interest rate risk s the risk that the value of a financial instrument will Aluctuate due to changes in the market yield.

A1 the reporting date the interest rate profile of Company's interest bearing financial instiurnents is as {ollows;

Effective Interest Rate Carrying Amount

023 20232 2023 2022
Variable rate instruments s [PeFCEMEARR] ——————— D el 1171 T R
Fingncial assets
Bank balances 12.50% to 18.50% 5.5% 10 6.61% B7,340.767 221,673,403
Term finance certificates 6 months KIBOR = 2% & months KIBOR « 2% A, 020,000 4,019,064
Financial liabilities
Sheort term borrowing 3 months KIBOR + 3.5% 3 monihs KIBOR + 3.5% 15ulgmn idagg? 195
Fined rate instruments
Depaosits with Mational Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited 10.75% 1o 17.00% 4.00% to 5.61% 39,365,527 111% 274,176

t
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Fair Value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Campany does not account for any fived rate financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss. Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not
have affected the after tax profit of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

A change of 100 bags points in interest rates at the reporting date would have increased [/ (decreased) equity and profit and loss by the amounts shown below. This analysis assumes
that all sther variables remain constant. The analysis is performed on the same basis for June 30, 2023.

Profit and loss Equuity
100 bps 100 bps 100 bps 100 bps
increase decrease increase decrease
Rupees

As at June 30, 2023
Cash and bank balances B73,408 [B73,408) 873,408 [873,408)
As at June 30, 2022
Cash and bank balances £216,734 12,216,734 2,216,734 (2,216,734
Price risk

Price risk includes equity price risk which is the risk of changes in the fair valve of equity securities as a result of changes in the levels of PSX-Index and the value of individual shares,

The table bebow summarises the Company's equity price risk as of June 30, 2023 and shows the effects of a hypothetical 10% increase and a 10% decrease in market prices as at the
year end.

Hypothetical
Estimated fair value  Hypothetical increase [/ Hypothetical increase [
Hypothetical Fair value after hypothetical {decrease) in profit / increase / (decrease) in
price change change in price [loss) after tax (decrease] in OCI shareholders’
equity
Rupees

Jupe 30, 2023 10% increase 205,957,399 226,553,139 20,595,740 - 20,595,740
10% decrease 185,361,659 (20,595,740 . {20,595,740)
June 30, 2022 10% increase 60,400,032 66,440,035 6,040,003 . 6,040,003
10 decrease 54,360,029 (6,0:40,003) - {6,040,003)

The selected hypothetical change does not reflect what could be considered to be the best or worst case scenarios

¥
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31.4 Operational risk
Operathonal risk is the risk of direct or indirect boss arising from a wide variety of causes asociated with the processes, technology and infrastructune supporting the Companmy's operations
either internally within the Company or externally al the Company’s service providers, and from external factors other than credit, market and bquidity risks such as those arising from

legal and regulatory reguirements and generally accepted standards of nvestment management behavios, Operational risks arise from all of the Company's activities,

The Company’s abjective i 10 manage operational risk so a3 1o balance limiting of financial losses and damage 1o its reputation with achieving lts objective of generating returns for
stakeholders.

Senlor management ensures that the Company's stafl have adequate training and experience and fosters effective communication releted to operational risk managemient
3L FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND LIABILITIES

Fair value is an amount for which an asseq could be exchanged or a liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in arm's length transactson, The table below analysis linancial
instruments carried at fair valwe, by valuation method. The different levels (methods] have been defined as follows:

Leved 1: Fair value measurements using quoted prices [unadpested) in active markets for identical assets or Habdlities

Lewel 2: Fair value meaurements wiing inputs other than quoted prices included within Lewe! 1 that are observable for the asset of hability, either directly {iLe. as prices) or indirectly fie.
derived from prices).

Lewed B: Fair value medsurements using mputs fof the auet or liability that are not based on observable market data (e, unobservable inputs),

Faar value of the financial assets that are traded in active markets are based on quoted market prices. The following table shows fair values of financial assets and financial liabdlities,
including their levels in the fair value hierarchy, These financial assets and financial liabilities, except investment in shares of PSX, ase short term and their fair value approximates their

carrying value,
On balance sheet June 30, 2023
financial instruments Carrying value Fair value
FVTOC! -
Mandatorily at Financial asset a1 Other financisl
FVTRL equity e liabilities Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Instrument
Rupees
Fnancial assets measued at fair value
Listed equity securities 205,957,393 - - - 205,957,399
Financial assets not measured at fair value
Term finance certificatss . - 4,020,000
Long term deposits - . 4,764,761 -
Trade debts - conibdered good - - 217,288,698 -
Deposits and prepayments - . 43,119,188 -
Advances and other reteivables - - 2,709,853
Cash and bank balances - . £7,340,767
205,957,399 - 359,243,267

b
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June 30, 2023
Carrying value Fair value
Mandatorily at AT = Financial asset at  Other financial
FUTPL iy amortised cost liabilities it Az LB
instrumaent
L —
Financial Habilities not measured at fair value
Unclaimed dividend . - - 3,004,827
Trade and other payables - = - 201,456,378
Shart term borrowing . - . 150,000,000
- - 354,461,205
On balance sheet June 30, 2022
financial instruments Carrying value Fair value
i PTOCE - i i
Mandatorily at Ay Financial asset at  Other financial Ui [miral Lt 3
FYTPL 5 amortised cost Habilities
instrument
Rupees - -
Financial assets measured at far value
Listed equity securities 0,400,052 g 3 60,400,032
Financial assets not measured at falr value
Term finance certificates J - 4,019,064 - -
Long term deposits - . 17,664,761
Trade debts - considered good . - 296,102,104
Inwestment in marginal financing . . 9,300,902
Deposits and prepayments n . 121,434,120
Advances and other receivables . - 206,118 450
Cash and bank balances - : 221673403
Eﬂﬁ 032 - 876,312 804
Financial liabilities not measured at fair value
Unclaimed dividend " s - 3,004,817
Trade and other payables . - - 440,746,770
Contract hability 1,166,658
Short term borrowing - - - 149,957,195
SN0
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The primary abjective of the Company’s capital management 15 to maintain healthy capital ratbos and optimal capital structure in order
o ensure ample avallability of finance for its existing operstions, for maximizing sharehalder's value, for tapping potential investment
oppormunities and to reduce cost of capital,

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustment 1o it, In light of changes in economic conditions. Furthermore, the
Company finances its operations through equity, borrowing and management of its working capital with a view to maintain an
appropriate mix between vanous sources of finance to minimise risk

et capital requiremaents of the Company are et and regulated by Pakistan Stock Exchange. These réquirementi are put in place to
ensure suffickent solvency marging and are based on eacess of currént assets over current labilithes, The Compary manages its net
capital requirements by assessing its capital structure against required capital level on & regular basks.

34, OPERATING SEGMENTS

2023
Equity Ilwtll:rl'llm Other Yotsi
Brokerage Banking Operations
Rupees

Segment revenues 75,581,904 30,225,256 13,396,086 119,203,246
Administrative and operating expenses

|ather than depreciation and amortization) 117,867,923 46,772,985 10,580,114 185,221,022
Depreciation 16,608,929 6,590,845 1,899,972 26,099,746
Amoriisation of intangible assets 103,110 40,917 18,003 162,030
Net iImpairment reversal on Trade Debts 13,976,562) - - [13,976,962)
Capital gain or boss on sale of investments = = 10,374,433 10,374,433
Unrealized gain / loss - - (13,602,935) [13,602,935)
Finance cost [11,685,101) (4,636,945) (2,040,256} [18,362,302)
Finance Income 34,972, 7RG - 1,840,560 36,813 346
Taxation [4,7TE3,877) 11,890,428) [831,788) |7.486,093)
Segment assets 630,949,209 111,273,336 408,324,195 1,150,546,840
Segment liabilities 248,813,592 97,192,810 42,764,836 388,771,238
Cagpital expenditure 76,076,561 1,241,267 4,554,906 81,872,734

There were no major customer of the Company which derived 10 percent or more of the Company's revenue. All non-current assets of
the Company as at June 30, 2023 and June 30, 2022 wre located and operating in Pakistan,

2022
Equity Inwestment Qnher Total
Brokerage Banking Operations

Ry =
Segment revenues 159,256,572 245,527,032 12,672,737 417,456,341
Adminkstrative and operating expenies

{other than deprecistion and amortization) 118,395,366 40,468,134 148,500,286 307,363,766

Depraciation 10,342,256 3.535,049 12,972,078 26,849,423
Amortisation of intangible assets 51,440 17,583 64,520 133,543
Capital gain or [loss) on sale of investments - - 5,297,102} 15,297,102)
Unrealized gain f loss - [32,534,222) 132,534,222)
Net impairment on Trade Debts (4,735,838) . . (4, 735,838)
Finance cost (23,433,894} [3.361,127) (173,483) |26,968,504)
Finance Income 44,484,033 - 1,891,566 47,375,599
Taxation (13,311,572}  (15,063,007) [141,433) {32,516,012)
Segment assets 630,549,209 111,273,336 #08. 324,295 1,150,546,840
Segment liabilities 556,774,917 15,568, 7TE1 52,922 851 625,286,559
Capital expenditure 76,076,561 1,241,267 4 554 906 81871734

35. BASE MINIMUM CAPITAL

in compliance with the Regulation 19.2 of the Auve Book of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited, every Trading Right Entitlement
Certificate (TREC) holder registered as a broker under Drokers and Agents Reglstration Rules, 2001, Is required to maintain a Base
Mindmam Caplial (8MC) In the amount and form as prescribed in the Rule on the basis of Aszets Under Custody (ALUC). As per the said
regulation, as at June 30, 2023, the Company i required Lo maintain BMC of Re. 30,625 million,

The notional value of the TREC and the break-up valuz of the shares for the purpose of BMC Is determined by the FSX as under:

023
Rupsees
Cash -
Trading Right Entitlement Certificates 2,500,000
= 2300000

The Company has pledged shares of Pakistan Stock Exchange for taking exposures In reguler and future market against Base Minimum
Capital (BMC) reoulramaent.

i
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36, LD CAPITAL BALANCE
The befow statement has been prepared In accordance with regulation 6{3] and schedule i of the Securities Brokers [Licensing and Operations)
Regulations, 3016
I 5. No. ]_ Head of Account it
1. Assels
1.1 |Property & Ei e [FRFTN 100% -
1.2 [intangible Astets 132,316,153 100%
i3 Ivestment in Government Securities: (Halrout applied on the basis of Difference between — i i
back valse and ulz walwe o the date an the badls of PERV E_rllh:.had Iﬂ MIFT}
Irvestment in Dabt Securities
If listed then:
I._5% of the balance sheet valug in the case of tenure uplo 1 year. 5 5% :
il. 7.5% of the balance sheet value, in the cate of tenure from 1-3 yEars, - 7.5% -
14 JiL31 i & kance sheet value in the case of tenure of mare than ang, 4,020,000 109 l&im
If undisted than:
1, 1i0% of the balance sheet value bn the case of terune upte 1 yesr . 1% .
il. 17.5% of the balance sheet valee, in the cate of tenune fram 1-3 yeary - 12.5% x
il 15% aof I!heb-lam:zihtrtﬂlueim the case af t:nuren‘l’rn-urt’lhﬂ_!“ns. - 15% -
Irvestmaent n Equ
1.5 [i, if listed 15% or VaR of each securities on the cutoff date as computed by the Securiies 205,957,550 27404400 B
16 [Investment in subsidiaries = 1005 .
Invesiment [n associated co mles/ undertak
13 1. I fisted 205 or VaR of esch securities st computed by the Securities Exchange for R i ]
il I widisted, 100% of net value. - 100% -
il Statutory ar nluulamn.- dlpnillrsfhm:ﬂepmr:s with the eschanges, cleating house or 2775000 100%
central depgsitory or any gther entify,
1.9 [Margin deposits with exchange and clearing house 39,365,927 % 35 355 837
1,10 _{Oeposit with aythorized intgrmadiary dgaingt borrowaed securities under SLB. 3 [ .
111 [Ovher deposits and prepayments 23 816,101 00 -
Accrued interest, profit or mark-up on amounts placed with financial institutions or debt
117 (Eeaurities elc, : - 5
1000 haircul 10 be applied in respact of markup accrued on bang W0 directons, subsidiaries R SEn ]
1.13 [Dvidends recetvable, E = -
Amounts receivable against Repo finencing,
114 [Amount paid as purchaser under the REFO agreement. |Secunities purchosed under repo - . .
arrong shall not be included in the i 5.}
Advences and Recetvables other than trade recehvables
i. Mo Haircut may be applied on the shom 1erm loan 1o empleyees provided these loans are = =y
115 (astured god due for cepgyment within 12 months _
i, "ﬂ.Hllftutml'fbllPMﬁﬂﬁllﬂ'ﬂrﬂ tax to the estent it is netted with provision af 41,208,658 100% :
| e i
il In all ather cages, 1005 of net vabue = 1005 -
[Recaivables froe clearing house or securities axchange(s) =
116 [100% value of claims other than those on account of entibements against trading of
; e 5 =
Recehvables rom customers
L. In case receivables are against margin Tnancing. the agiregate of (i) value of securities
held in the blocked account after apphgng VAR based Haincut, (i) cash deposited as
collateral by the finances (8] market valee of any securities deposived as collateral after - - -
apphying VRl based haincut.
*lLd *Ilil RRTSOCE F allrl oMl E
i, Incase receivables ane against margin vading, 5% of the net balance sheet value, & -
ii, et omount ofter deducting heireut =
i, Incase receivables ane against securities borrowings under 5L, the amount paid ta
NCCPL 8 collateral upon enteving into contracy, . " -
LAT i, et gfter deducting haircut
. Incase of other trade receivables not mone than 5 days overdue, 0% of the net batance
sheet value. 113,610,261 o 123,610,261
\fv. Balance sheet value
. Incase of athaer trade receivabiles are overdue, or 5 days or more, the aggregate of (i) the
market value of securities purchased for customens and held in sub-accounts after applying
VAR based haircuts, (i) cash deposited a3 collateral by the respective customer and (i) the 86,416,380 59,323,712 £9.323.772
market valee of securithes hekd s collateral after applying VaR based halrcuts.
v, Lower of net bolonce sheet wolve or valve determined throvgh edjustments
wi, 10 haircwt In the cose af amownt receivable form relmted parties. 7.162,057 1008 -
Cash and Bank balances
115 [Bank Balarce-proprietary a<counts 24,152,008 0% 24,192,028
A Bank balance-customer accounts £3.128.119 % 63,128,119
. Cash in hansd 20,620 0% 20,620
1.18 | Subscription money against investment in IPOY offer for sale [assen) - 0% .
120 |Total Assets B16,817, 860 491,721,723
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|s.m.|~.='. RIS Hend of Account | ¢ Mt i T
L. Liabilitkes
Trade Paysbles
L Payable to sxchanges and clearing house 71,817,005 [ 7817005
21 B Payable sgaingg leveraged markel produgts - e -
B Payable 10 custodmers 17,232 043 (1.3 T7.232 043
Current Liabilities
i Sratutory and reguiatony dies 711,961 o F11.963
i_Accruals and other payables 115,685 168 o 115,685 368
i, Short-ierm borrowings 150,000,000 (v 1 50,000, 000
3 |e.Current portion of jubordinated loans = i -
= w. Current portian of o m liabilit B310,322 % B910.323
wi. Deferred Liatilinies = s =
wil, Proviskon for taxation = s .
wiil, Ol NELANISES 36 PET SCOTUNTIng principles ard ncluded in the linancisl staygrmens 3,004,827 = 3,004,027
Mon-Current Liabiliies
. Long-Teerm financing 25,399 111 100k -
2.3 [ Saalf reticerment benadits - 0% -
lil. Gther labilities as per sccounting principies and included in the financlal statemants % -
|subordinated Loans
2.4 | 100% of Subordinated loans which fullil the conditions specilied by SECF are allowed 10 be y — 7
[=]
Adwance against shares for increase in o ur et . - .
100 Hadrout may be allowed in respect of advance against shares If:
(1) Thir existing authodiced share capital stlows the proposed enhanced share capital
{il] Board of Directors of the company has approved the increass in capital
25 11ii) Relevant Regulatory approvals have been cbtained , 100% :
(i) Thede i no unreasonable delay in istue of shares agamst sdvance and a9 regulstory
requirements refating 1o the Increase in paid up capital have been completed
] Audinor is satisfied that such sdvance i against the intrease of capital.
1.6 |Total Liabifties 388,771,238 363,371,527

3, Ranking Liabilitles Rekating to :
|Carcentration In Margin Financing

31  |The amount caloulated client-to-client basis by which any amount recebvable from any of
the financees exceed 10% of the aggregate of amounts receiable frorn total fnancees.

Concentration in securities lending and borrowing

The amount by which the aggregate of:

(i} Ampiant depodited by the bormower with ROCPL

(i) Cash margirs pald and . -

[lilp The miarket walue of seouritles pledged as marging sxesd the 1109% of the markel value

of shares borrgwed

Met underwriting Commiments

(ol o the case of right lxsaes : o the market value of securities is less than or equal ta the

subscription price;

the aggregate of:

13 (1) thee 50% of Haircut multiplied by the underwriting commisments and : : )
= 1) thie value by which the underwriting comamitments esceeds the market price of the

securities,

I thee case of rights lssues where the mariet price of securities is greater than the

subiscripthon price. 5% of the Hairout muttiplied by the net undenariting

Imw}_lz 5% of the net underwriting commitmaents - = =
Megathee equity of subsidiary

14 |The amount by which the 1otal assets of the subsidiary [ excleding ary amount due from the
subisidiary] exceed the total lisbilities of the subsidiary

rﬁTgn IHEMBI‘ IlFHI'I'I!M‘.I- and 'ﬂrl!l‘l Curfendy EH‘IHI‘I‘I

&% of the net poaition in faresgn currency et position in forelgn currency means the
difference of total assets denominated in foreign curmency bess total lakilitles dencminated * - -
in foreign currency

3.6 JAmownt Payable under REPOQ - = =
Ll adjustment

in the case of financier/purchaser the total amount recefvable under Repo less the 110% of
the market value of underlying securities.

in tha case of finances/seller the market value of underhying securities alter applying , 5 3
Ralrcut bess the Tousl amodent netehved, leds value of any securities deposiited as collateral by
the purchaser after apphging haircut less any cash deposited by the purchaser.

[Cone d proprietary positions

I the market value of any security it between 25% and 51% of the total progrietany
positions tham 5% of the value of such securiny 0 the market of & securnity exceeds 51% af . . 3,708,822
the then 10% of the value of such security

32
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TS Valuen [~ HairCut] | Wet Adjusted

5. Mo, | - ¥ . Head of Account f Sy b
Opening Positions In futures and options s

i. In case of customer positions, the total margin requirements in respect of open positions
less the amount of cash deposited by the customer and the value of securities held as

e collateral / pledged with securities exchange after applying VaR halrcuts

il. I case of proprietary positions , the total masrgin requirements in respect of open
positions to the extent not already met

Short sell positions
i. Incase of customer positions, the marker value of shares sold shom in ready marker on

behalf of customers after increasing the same with the VaR based halrcuts less the cash
110 deposited by the customer as collateral and the value of securities held as collateral after :
' LIHE ying VAR baged Halrouts

il. Incase of proprietary positions, the market value of shares sold short in ready market and

not yet settled increased by the amount of VAR based haircut less the value of securities . -
pledged as :ollumm;\rﬂring halrcuts.
3.11 |Total Ranking Liabilities = = 3,708,822
AZEEE Hi Liquid Capital lligﬂiliﬂ
Summary of Liquid Capital
(i) Adjusted value of Assets (serial number 1.20) 491,721,723
(i) Less: Adpusted value of llabilities [serial number 2.6) (363,371,527)
{iii} Less: Total ranking liabilities {serial number 3.11) {3,708.821)
YR
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2023 2022
37.1 CAPITAL ADEQUACY LEVEL Rupees
Total assets 816,817,860  1,150,546,840
Less:  Total liabilities (388,771,238) (625,286,559)
Revaluation reserves - .
Capital adegquacy level 42 22 F 2

37. RESEARCH AMNALYST

At present, the Company employs only 1 member in the Research Department i.e Head of Research reporting directly to
the Chief Executive Officer.

Compensation structure of research department is flat and is subject to qualification, experience and skill set of the
person. However, the compensation of anyone employed in the research department does not in any way depend on
the contents / outcome of research report.
During the year, the personnel employed in the Research Department have drawn an aggregate salary and benefits
amaounting to Rs. 5.4 million which comprise basic salary, medical allowance and other benefits as per the Company's
policy.

38. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES

The total employees at year end wera 67 (2022; 74) and the average number of employees during the year was 68
{2022: 65).

39. GEMERAL
39.1 Corresponding figures

The corresponding figures have been rearranged and reclassified, wherever considered necessary, to comply with the
requirements of Companies Act, 2017

40. DATE OF AUTHORISATION FOR ISSUE

These financial statements have been authorised for issue on ? CI SED _Jn:n by the Board of
Directors of the Company.

Chief Executive Officer Chief Financial Officer Director

Annual Report 2023




[

NEXT CAPITAL LIMITED
PATTERN OF SHARE HOLDING
AS ON JUNE 30, 2023

No. of
Shareholders NO. OF SHARES Mo of
FROM TO CDC Physical '.|hdH-"h olders Sharesheld
1 1 100 153 2 155 1,909
2 101 500 48 2 50 11,836
3 501 1000 57 170 227 146,629
4 1001 5000 128 16 144 331,875
5 5001 10000 53 0 53 365,075
6 10001 15000 25 0 25 298,621
7 15001 20000 9 0 9 158,595
8 20001 25000 5 0 5 115,850
9 25001 30000 10 0 10 278,400
10 30001 35000 & 0 6 188,102
11 35001 40000 4 0 4 151,200
12 40001 45000 1 0 1 45,000
13 45001 50000 3 0 3 141,625
14 55001 60000 2 0 2 115,000
15 60001 65000 3 1 4 254,005
16 65001 70000 1 0 1 68,000
17 FOO01 75000 3 0 3 218,855
18 75001 80000 1 0 1 75,900
19 85001 80000 2 0 2 174 225
20 0001 85000 1 0 1 93,500
21 100001 105000 1 0 1 103,500
22 110001 115000 2 0 2 230,000
23 115001 120000 2 0 2 233,325
24 120001 125000 3 0 3 367,800
25 145001 150000 1 0 1 150,000
26 150001 155000 1 0 1 153,565
27 210001 215000 1 0 1 211,600
28 225001 230000 2 0 2 457,700
28 230001 235000 3 0 3 694,714
30 250001 255000 1 0 1 253,000
k)| 320001 325000 1 0 i 322,000
32 340001 345000 1 0 1 345,000
33 365001 370000 1 0 1 368,057
34 435001 440000 1 0 1 437,057
35 470001 475000 1 0 1 474 691
36 630001 635000 1 0 1 632,500
37 750001 755000 1 0 1 752 675
38 820001 825000 1 0 1 824,500
39 945001 950000 1 0 1 948,176
40 1190001 1185000 1 0 1 1,191,975
41 4265001 4270000 1 0 1 4,269,375
42 4405001 4410000 1 0 1 4,407 691
43 5515001 5520000 1 0 1 5,516,032
44 5690001 5695000 1 0 1 5,691,867
45 8000001 9005000 1 0 1 8,003,082
46 15645001 15650000 1 0 1 15,645,836
548 191 739 56,925,000
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PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING
As at June 30" 2023
CATEGORIES OF SHAREHOLDERS SHAREHOLDERS SHARES HELD PERCENTAGE
Directors and their spouse(s) and
minor children
Name:
1 Muhammad Najam Ali ; 15,645,836 %?;135
> Wis. Hanna K han 4. 408 401 744
3 Muhammad Zulgarnain Mchmood Khan I 9 005.908 15871
4 Liutenant General(Retd) Tarig Waseem I L '
Ghazi 30517 0.054
5.Hassan Shahnawaz 1 2,846 0.005
6. Malik Khurram Shahzad I 1,265 0.002
7. Ali Akhtar Ali ! 01 0.000002
Associated companies, undertakings  and
related parties = = =
Executives . 6.175 0011
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Banks, development finance institutions, 12.219.346 21.47
non- banking finance companics,
insurance companies, takaful, modarabas and
pension funds
Others 15,604,705 2741
otal 56,925,000 100
Shareholders holding 5% or more
Name Shares held | Percentage
Muhammad Najam Ali 15.645.836 27485
Muhammad Zulgamain Mehmood Khan 9.005,908 15.821
Adnan Afridi 5,691,867 99988
Maple Leal Cement Factory Lid 4,269 375 7.50
MCE Bank Limited - Treasury 5,516,032 9.69
Mrs. Hanna Khan 4,408 401 7.744
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PROXY FORM

I'We being a member of M/s. Next Capital Limited and holder of shares as per
Folio Mo. CDC Participant [D# and Sub Accoumt # £ CDRC Investors: Account #
herchy  appoint  Mr. of iFolio Mo

CDC Participant  1D# and Sub Account # CDC Investors Account #

or failing him Mr ol (Folio

M, CDC Participant 114 and Sub Account # /DO Investors Account
# ) as my/our Proxy to attend, speak and vote for me/us and on my/our behalf at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of

the Company 1o be held on October 25, 2023 at 09:00 am at the Head Office 2 Floor Imperial Count Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,

Karachi and any adjournment thereof/

Signed this ..o ecday ol 2023

WITNESSES:

1= Sigmahiee ... i
[ 11 SR AR L A R Rupees Five

Revenue Stamp
Address. ...
i L0 S S T
Specimen SIEamiie ...

2o SIZNANITE e e e Helder of ..ooovvreeveeeeevnsvss e Ondinary Shanes
R A G T Share Register Folio No..........oooniimniianim
WD o e “CDCT Participant s ID No..... o Ae Now .,
by | L o R e S C i St

Notes:

i If a member is unable to attend the meeting, he/she may appoint another member as his/her proxy and
send this form to Next Capital Limited, 2" Floor Imperial Court Building, Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road,
Karachi to reach not less than 48 hours before the time appointed for holding the meeting.

ii. Attested copies if CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy holder shall be furnished
with the proxy form.

iii.  The Proxy holder shall produce his/her original CNIC or original passport at the time of meeting.

v, In case of corporate entity. The Board of Directors Resolution. Power of Attorney with specimen signature
shall be submitted along with the proxy form of the Company.
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stamp

The Company Secretary
Mext Capital Limited

2nd Floor Imperial Court Building
Dr. Ziauddin Ahmed Road, Karachi
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